Florida State College
at Jacksonwville

June 6, 2023

MEMORANDUM

TO: Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

FROM: John Avendano, Ph.D. '
College President

RE: June 2023 Board Agenda

Enclosed please find materials in support of the June 13, 2023, Board meeting.

All meetings of the Board will be held at the College’s Administrative Offices, 501 West State
Street, Jacksonville, FL 32202.

The Board Workshop on the topics listed below will convene from noon — 1 p.m. in Room 403A.
The Board regular meeting will begin at 1 p.m., Board Room 405.

e FSCJDBOT Self-Evaluation Process
e College President’s Evaluation Process

e Collegewide Facilities Master Plan

Should you have any questions, or if you are unable to attend one or both of the meetings, please
let me know.

Administrative Offices 501 West State Street, Jacksonville, FL 32202 (904) 632-3222 | fscj.edu



Florida State College at Jacksonville 202300657

District Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting
AGENDA
June 13, 2023 — 1 p.m.
Administrative Offices, Board Room 405

CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE PUBLIC

The District Board of Trustees welcomes comments before the Board relating to matters under the
Board’s consideration during today’s meeting. Those who wish to address the Board are required to
complete a Public Comment Request form* prior to the meeting. Requestors will be called upon by
the Board Chair. Comments are limited to three minutes per person, and the Board is not required to
respond.

MINUTES OF THE APRIL 11, 2023, DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES FINANCE &
AUDIT COMMITTEE QUARTERLY MEETING (p. 672-673)

MINUTES OF THE APRIL 11, 2023, DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES WORKSHOP
(p. 674-675)

MINUTES OF THE APRIL 11, 2023, DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR
MEETING (p. 676-697)

REPORT OF THE COLLEGE PRESIDENT
STRATEGIC PROGRAMMATIC DISCUSSION

CONSENT AGENDA
Trustees may remove item(s) from the Consent Agenda for individual consideration under Action
[tems.

1. Administration: Comprehensive Safety Review for 2022-23 (p. 698)

2. Purchasing: Annual Contract Extensions (p. 699)

B Purchasing: North Campus Re-Paving & Criminal Justice Center (CJC) Driving Course &
Skills Pad (p. 700)

4 Purchasing: Re-Roofing — Advanced Technology Center (ATC) (p. 701)

5. Purchasing: Re-Roofing — Downtown Campus Building A (p. 702)

6. Finance: Delinquent Accounts (p. 703)

7 Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the Collegewide Energy, Water & Wastewater
Performance Savings Project (p. 704)

8. Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the Downtown Campus — CARES Act —Chiller
Replacement, Building C (p. 705)
9. Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the Downtown Campus — CARES Act — Phase 1 —

Building A, AHU-1 & 2 Replacement (p. 706)

10.  Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the North Campus — ARP Act — Roof
Replacement, Criminal Justice Center (p. 707)

11.  Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the North Campus — ARP Act - Paving &
Restriping — Parking Lots 1-4 & 6 (p. 708)

12.  Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the South Campus — CARES Act — Phase 2 —
Chiller Replacement, Building A (p. 709)



202300670

Subject: FSCI DBOT Regular Meeting
June 13, 2023, Board Agenda

(Continued)

ACTION ITEMS

1. Approval of Consent Agenda (p. 710)

2. Administration: Annual Salary Index (p. 711-712)

81 Human Resources: Florida College System Annual Equity Update Report (p. 713)

4. Finance: Direct Support Organization Checklist and Annual Audit for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2022 (p. 714-795)

5. Finance: Fees and Charges (p. 796)

6. Finance: FSCJ ACCESS Program (p. 797)

7. Finance: Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget Amendment No. 4 (p. 798-799)

8. Finance: Fiscal Year 2023-24 College Budget (p. 800)

9. Finance: Fiscal Year 2023-24 Capital Outlay Budget (p. 801-803)

10.  Facilities: Approval of the Collegewide Master Plan (p. 804)

11.  Facilities: Capital Improvement Plan, Fiscal Years 2024-25 through 2026-27, and Five-Year
Educational Plant Survey, Fiscal Years 2023 to 2028 (p. 805-806)

12.  Academic Affairs: Activation of Specialized Career Education — Comprehensive (900 clock
hours) Career Certificate Program (p. 807)

13.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Insurance Claims Adjuster (6-20) Career Certificate Program
(p. 808)

14.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Insurance Customer Service Representative (4-40) Career
Certificate Program (p. 809)

15.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Insurance General Lines Agent [Property and Casualty
(2-20)] Career Certificate Program (p. 810)

16.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Life Insurance Marketing (2-15) Career Certificate Program
(p. 811)

17.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Loan Originator — Mortgage Career Certificate Program
(p. 812)

18.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Personal Lines Insurance Agent (20-44) Career Certificate
Program (p. 813)

19.  Academic Affairs: Inactivation of Property Adjuster Estimating Career Certificate Program
(p. 814)

20.  Academic Affairs; Inactivation of Courses Not Taught Within Five Years (p. 815-817)

INFORMATION ITEMS

Trustees may request discussion of the Information Items.

A. Human Resources: Personnel Actions (p. 818-820)

B. Purchasing: Purchase Orders Over $195,000 (p. 821)

C. Finance: Investment Reports for Quarter Ended March 31, 2023 (p. 822)

D. Facilities: Change Orders — Collegewide 5-Year Master Plan (p. 823)

E. Facilities: Change Orders — Collegewide Energy, Water & Wastewater Project (p. 824-826)

F. Facilities: Change Orders — Downtown Campus — CARES Act — Chiller Replacement, Building
C (p. 827-829)

G. Facilities: Change Orders — Downtown Campus — CARES Act — Phase 1 — Building A, AHU-1
& 2 Replacement (p. 830-831)

H. Facilities: Change Orders — North Campus — ARP Act — Paving & Restriping — Parking Lots
1-4 & 6 (p. 832-833)

L Facilities: Change Orders — South Campus — CARES Act — Phase 2 — Chiller Replacement,

Building A (p. 834-835)



Subject: FSCJ DBOT Regular Meeting 202300671

June 13, 2023, Board Agenda
(Continued)

REPORT OF THE BOARD CHAIR
REPORTS OF TRUSTEES
REPORT OF THE BOARD LIAISON, FSCJ FOUNDATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REPORT OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE AND PROFESSIONAL COLLABORATIVE (Report
provided by Kerry Roth)

REPORT OF THE CAREER EMPLOYEES COUNCIL (Written report provided by Phillip
Delacruz)

REPORT OF THE FACULTY SENATE (Written report provided by Dr. John Woodward)

REPORT OF THE STUDENT GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (Written report provided by
Jazmyn Arce)

NEXT MEETING

The Board will meet on Tuesday, July 11, 2023, at the College’s Cecil Center North for a Deep Dive
Workshop. The workshop will convene at noon in Room A-109. The next regular meeting of the Board
is scheduled for Tuesday, August 8, 2023.

ADJOURNMENT

* Please refer to the FSCJ DBOT webpage for procedures/information regarding “Public Comments.” The FSCJ DBOT
webpage may be viewed within the College’s website at: https:/www.fscj.edu/dbot.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees
Finance & Audit Committee
Minutes of April 11,2023, Quarterly Meeting
Kent Campus, Room D-111, 10:45 a.m.

PRESENT: D. Hunt Hawkins, Committee Chair
Michael M. Bell, Chair, District Board of Trustees
Roderick D. Odom
O. Wayne Young
John Avendano
Wanda Ford
Stephen Stanford
Taylor Mejia
Lindsey Thomas
ABSENT: Bl
CALL TO ORDER: College President John Avendano, Ph.D. and Committee Chair Hunt
Hawkins called the Finance and Audit Committee meeting to order
at 10:45 a.m. and welcomed those in attendance.
INFORMATION /
DISCUSSION:
I.  Review of Recent Vice President of Finance & Administration Dr. Wanda Ford and
FSCJ Financial Controller Lindsey Thomas provided an overview of the recent
Audit: FSCJ Financial Audit for fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The

II. Discussion of
Interim Financial
Statement:

Auditor General reviewed the College’s financial statements. They
found those were presented fairly and there were no deficiencies in
internal controls over financial reporting. There were no instances of
non-compliance. Net position increased due to indirect cost of
HEERF funds collected. Con Ed energy agreement was paid off to
save $1M annually until conclusion of agreement (2037).

Vice President Ford and Associate Vice President for Administrative
Services Steve Stanford provided an overview of the Interim
Financial Statement as of February 28, 2023. Revenue is still down
due to the decrease in enrollment for the year. Summer enrollment is
up 2.4%. By restructuring various departments and using salary
savings realized through cuts on 50 vacant positions, the College
will be able to use these funds to address increases in utilities, costs
of goods and services and salary inequities. Expenses have increased
with the Criminal Justice Center, Commercial Vehicle Driving
Program and dual enrollment. The Nursing Program has expanded to
the Deerwood and Nassau Centers.
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Finance & Audit Committee

Minutes of the April 11, 2023, Quarterly Meeting
Page 2

202300673

Due to FTE dropping this year, Fund Balance may drop to 5%
allowable reserves. As in prior years, the College will submit a
spending plan to include funds designated for hurricane insurance
deductibles or other capital costs.

III.  Discussion of 2023 — Vice President Ford and Associate Vice President Stanford provided
2024 Budget: a review of the proposed allocation of additional recurring state

funding. For the upcoming budget, the College projects receiving a
state allocation that is between the amount included in the proposed
House and Senate bills. President Avendano discussed the difference
in the two bills. The House bill is using the Council of Presidents’
new fund model while the Senate bill is basing projections on how
the colleges were funded in the past. The College is projecting an
increase in health care insurance, faculty/staff pay, and minimum
wage. The College is conducting an analysis related to wage
compression.

IV. Discussion President Avendano provided an overview of the potential sale of
Regarding the Main Street Building Complex. Interest was expressed in the
Land/Property Sale: past by Groundworks to use as office space for free. The College

obtained an independent property appraisal of the parcel. JWB Real
Estate Capital, LLC will present to the DBOT at the upcoming
workshop the proposed plan for the property. The sale of the
property would allow the College to recover value in assets it no
longer has the intentions of utilizing, and redirect resources to other
capital projects.

NEXT MEETING: The next meeting of the Finance & Audit Committee is scheduled for
Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at the College’s Administrative Offices as
part of the DBOT Deep Dive Budget Workshop. The Committee will
meet at noon in Board Room 405.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, President Avendano and Committee
Chair Hawkins declared the meeting adjourned at 11:37 a.m.

APPROVAL OF
MINUTES.:

Committee Chair, Finance and Audit Committee

Vice President of Finance and Administration

Submitted by: Shannon Oliver, Administration Support Manager
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees
Minutes of the April 11, 2023, Workshop
Kent Campus, Room D-120, Noon

PRESENT: Michael M. Bell, Chair
Roderick D. Odom, Vice Chair, Nassau County
0. Wayne Young, Vice Chair, Duval County
Jennifer D. Brown
D. Hunt Hawkins
Aaron A. Miri
Andrew B. Shaw

ABSENT: Thomas R. McGehee, Jr.

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Michael Bell called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m. and
welcomed those in attendance.

WELCOME/ College President John Avendano Ph.D. welcomed all those in

INTRODUCTIONS: attendance, noting that today’s agenda was centered on one topic. He
introduced President of JWB Real Estate Capital Alex Sifakis, who will
present the Board with information relating to properties within the
downtown Jacksonville area.

INFORMATION/

DISCUSSION:

A. Review of Surrounding President of JWB Real Estate Capital Alex Sifakis provided the Board
Properties — Downtown with a review of surrounding properties in downtown Jacksonville. The
Jacksonville: review included information pertaining to the following:

Brief Bio of Himself
e State/Union Corridor Development a.k.a North Corridor (NoCo)

e Current Northbank Development
o Numerous Projects Downtown
o Van Gogh Exhibit in NoCo Center
o Mid-Rise Construction

e Current NoCo Development

e JWB Downtown Developments

o Federal Reserve “Renovation”

o JWB Real Estate
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Minutes of the April 11, 2023, Workshop

Page 2

ADJOURNMENT:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

There was discussion by the Board relating to residential units, current
core population of downtown Jacksonville, potential development in
downtown Jacksonville, concerns of access to capital, demographics/
rates of downtown rental units, 20 West FSCJ Housing, humanitarian
issue, economic development of downtown Jacksonville, changes since
2016 to present, economic development incentives, FSCJ’s Culinary
Program and the University of Florida’s plan within downtown
Jacksonville.

President Avendano thanked JWB President Sifakis for taking time
from his busy schedule to attend today’s workshop and share
information on the development in downtown Jacksonville. He thanked
the Trustees for their in-depth discussion on the workshop topic.

President Avendano reminded the Board of the upcoming FSCJ Golf
Classic scheduled on Monday, April 24 at Queens Harbour Yacht and
Country Club, and encouraged their attendance at the event.

There being no further business, Chair Bell declared the workshop
adjourned at 12:46 p.m.

Chair, District Board of Trustees

Executive Secretary, District Board of Trustees

Submitted by: Kimberli Sodek, Secretary to the Board
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Florida State College at Jacksonville

District Board of Trustees

Minutes of the April 11, 2023, Regular Meeting

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

CALL TO ORDER:

PLEDGE:

COMMENTS BY THE
PUBLIC:

MINUTES:

(Ref. Board Agenda for
April 11, 2023; Pages
202300436 —474)

Kent Campus, Room D-120, 1 p.m.

Michael M. Bell, Chair

Roderick D. Odom, Vice Chair, Nassau County
0. Wayne Young, Vice Chair, Duval County
Jennifer D. Brown

D. Hunt Hawkins

Aaron A. Miri

Andrew B. Shaw

Thomas R. McGehee, Jr.

Chair Michael Bell called the meeting to order at 1:06 p.m. and
welcomed those in attendance.

Chair Bell led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chair Bell opened the public comments segment of the meeting
wherein members of the public were invited to make comments
on matters before the Board’s consideration.

Chair Bell advised the Board that no member of the publfc had
requested to speak. He asked if there were any comments by the
Trustees, and there were none.

Chair Bell asked the Board if there were any comments or
recommended revisions to the Florida State College at
Jacksonville (FSCJ) District Board of Trustees (DBOT)
minutes — as a slate — of the January 27, 2023, Deep Dive
Workshop/Planning Meeting, on agenda pages 436 —441;
February 14, 2023, Finance & Audit Committee Quarterly
Meeting, on agenda pages 442 — 444; February 14, 2023,
Workshop, on agenda pages 445 — 449; February 14, 2023,
Regular Meeting, on agenda pages 450 — 472; and March 22,
2023, Business Dinner, on agenda pages 473 — 474, and there
were none.

MOTION: (Hawkins — Odom) The motion was made to
approve the FSCJ DBOT minutes — as a slate — from the
January 27, 2023, Deep Dive Workshop/Planning Meeting;
February 14, 2023, Finance & Audit Committee Quarterly
Meeting; February 14, 2023, Workshop; February 14, 2023,
Regular Meeting; and March 22, 2023, Business Dinner, as
recommended.

Motion carried unanimously.
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REPORT OF THE COLLEGE

PRESIDENT:

FSCJ DBOT, Trustee Aaron
Miri:

FSCJ DBOT, Board Chair
Michael Bell:

Legislative Update:

College President John Avendano, Ph.D. congratulated FSCJ
DBOT, Trustee Aaron Miri:

He began his remarks with a congratulations to Trustee
Miri.

Trustee Miri was recognized as one of 35 health system
chief digital officers “Executives to Know” by Becker’s
Hospital Review.

This is a great recognition of Trustee Miri’s work at his
“day job.”

On behalf of FSCJ, he offered the College’s heartfelt
congratulations to Trustee Miri.

President Avendano shared with the Board information relating
to FSCJ DBOT, Board Chair Michael Bell:

Chair Bell was featured in the March 23, 2023 edition of
The Yulee News.

He congratulated Chair Bell on the wonderful article written
on the insight/perspective of Wildlight and FSCJ.

He thanked Chair Bell for his recent attendance at FSCJ’s
Senior Take Over Day at the Betty P. Cook Nassau Center.

President Avendano provided the Board with information
relating to the Legislative Update:

The Association of Florida Colleges (AFC) and The Florida
College System Council of Presidents (COP) conducted a
joint meeting in Tallahassee on March 23 and 24, 2023. He
thanked Trustees Hawkins, Odom and McGehee for
attending.

He thanked FSCJ’s Director of Government and
Community Relations Taylor Mejia and The Southern
Group for their coordination and support. The group was
visited by a number of legislators and the Commissioner
throughout the day.

Proposals from the House and the Senate appear to be very
favorable for the State College System.

The ask from the COP was for $150 million in new program
funding around the new budget funding model along with
moving State College System employees to the University
Health Care Program.
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Commencement Update:

University of Florida Update:

It appears the COP will be successful in receiving additional
funding; however, the health insurance idea may need to
wait another year.

The COP also has four projects for the College in their asks.
These include the Criminal Justice Center and Fire Science
Burn Building and the Health Careers expansion in the
Governor’s budget, and there is delegation support for the
Veterans Center and Careers Connection Center.

He thanked Director Mejia for her due diligence and
updates.

President Avendano provided the Board with information
relating to the Commencement Update:

The College community is looking forward to the 2023
FSCJ Commencement Ceremony on Thursday, May 11
at VyStar Veterans Memorial Arena.

Planning is well underway to make the event memorable for
FSCJ students and their loved ones. Trustees will soon
receive communications with specific details on timing,
parking and more. He encouraged the Board to join him at
the arena.

Over the past couple of weeks, the College has held Grad
Fest events across the different campus/center locations,
where FSCJ’s soon-to-be graduates were able to pick up
their caps, gowns, honors cords and more.

He thanked everyone who participated. The College had
more than 1,000 graduates at all the events.

President Avendano shared with the Board information relating
to the University of Florida’s Update:

As an update on the University of Florida (UF) expansion
into downtown Jacksonville, the project has passed through
the City and the first $20 million of $50 million City dollars
was approved.

UF is working to raise $50 million from private supporters
and the bill has been proposed for an additional $100
million through the state legislature.

The programs UF plan to offer at the downtown location
will be at the graduate level so there will be no direct
competition with FSCJ’s work. UF’s goal is to serve 1,000
students once they are at full capacity.

At this time, there is still no confirmation on the location UF
intends to use.
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Community Partner Event President Avendano shared with the Board information relating
Recap: to the Community Partner Event Recap:

e On March 31, 2023, the College held the FSCJ
Connections: Community Partner Event at Downtown
Campus, inviting representatives from the community,
including nonprofits, financial institutions and workforce
preparation partners.

e This was a great opportunity to share some of the College’s
recent and upcoming highlights while building stronger
connections for further engagement.

e There were over 50 attendees at the event.

e Participants were able to learn about some of FSCJ’s
academic programs and resources the College has in place
to support students.

o The intent of the program was to build stronger connections
with FSCJ’s partners.

FSCIJ Golf Tournament: President Avendano shared with the Board information relating
to the FSCJ Golf Tournament:

e The College is excited for the FSCJ Golf Classic, presented
by First Florida Credit Union, on Monday, April 24, 2023,
at Queen’s Harbour Yacht and Country Club.

e The event will once again benefit FSCJ’s BlueWave
Athletics program.

e There are a variety of ways Trustees can participate — even
if, you are unable to join us.

e He shared with Trustees if they would like to learn more,
please reach out to him directly or FSCJ’s Executive
Director of the Foundation Cleve Warren.

APC, CEC, Faculty Awards: President Avendano shared with the Board information relating

to the APC, CEC and Faculty Awards:

e He noted each year he has the privilege of announcing the
recipients of FSCJ’s Administrative and Professional
Collaborative, Career Employees’ Council and Faculty
awards. Students, faculty and staff were invited to submit
their nominations and each group’s selection committee
chose the following recipients. The recipient’s names are as
follows:

Distinguished Faculty Awards

o Dr. Theresa Dyer-Kramer, Professor of Nursing
Jeniah Jones, Professor of Adult Education

Dr. Chris Perle, Professor of Biological Sciences
Matthew Simmons, Professor of Mathematics
Dr. Indrani Sindhuvalli, Professor of Biological
Sciences

O O O O
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Distinguished Adjunct Faculty Award
o Janet Goldstein, Professor of Human Services

Administrative and Professional Collaborative
Exceptional Service and Initiative Award

o Kerry Roth, Associate Director of Student
Success, Student Life & Leadership and North Campus
Dean

Career Emplovees’ Council Recognition of Excellence
Award

o Brian Keene, Natural Sciences Laboratory Manager

e Asasymbol of the College’s appreciation, recipients will
receive $1,000 along with FSCJ swag. Additional
recognition will also continue throughout the academic year.

e He was able to meet with each recipient, some in person and
a couple of others virtually, to share with them the great
news.

o The recipients were all very excited and grateful for the
acknowledgement of their hard work.

SACSCOC Reaffirmation President Avendano shared with the Board information relating
Update: to the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools
Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC) Reaffirmation Update:

e As an update on the institution’s ten-year SACSCOC
reaffirmation process, FSCJ’s compliance report was
submitted and the College awaits the results of the off-site
review, which should come later this month or early May
2023.

e The SACSCOC VP virtual advisory visit is scheduled for
May 31, 2023.

e The response reports and Quality Enhancement Plan (QEP)
are due to the on-site committee on September 11, 2023.
Their visit will take place from October 23-26, 2023.

e The College will need to coordinate with a few of the
Trustees for the visits.

e In June 2024, the College will receive the review and
decision by the SACSCOC Board of Trustees.

Data Dashboard: President Avendano shared with the Board information relating
to the April 2023 Data Dashboard/high-level view of the
institutional data sets:

e Spring Term College Credit Enrollment:
o Down -0.2% credit hours compared to spring 2022.
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STRATEGIC
PROGRAMMATIC
DISCUSSION:

CONSENT AGENDA:

(Ref. Board Agenda for

April 11, 2023; Items 1
through 5, Pages 202300475 —
538)

ACTION ITEMS:

(Ref. Board Agenda for

April 11, 2023; Items 1
through 9, Pages 202300539 —
551)

o Represents 100.4% of overall enrollment for spring
2022.

o When compared to spring 2021, college credit
enrollment is down -13,627 credit hours.

e Summer Term College Credit Enrollment:
o Up +2.3% credit hours compared to summer 2022.

o Represents 65.1% of overall enrollment for summer
2022.

o When compared to summer 2021, college credit
enrollment is down -3,027 credit hours.

e Finance Report shows actual revenues and expenditures
compared to budget for the period ending February 28, 2023
and February 28, 2022.

e Grants Report:
o So far in the 2022-23 award year, FSCJ has received
more than $13.5 million in grants.

President Avendano asked if there were any questions or
comments by the Board related to his Report, Data Dashboards
and/or any other College Strategic matters, and there were none.

Chair Bell noted the Trustees had fully reviewed the

Consent Agenda items prior to today’s meeting and had the
opportunity to discuss any questions and/or concerns with the
College President. As a result, questions and concerns regarding
agenda items were addressed and resolved in advance of the
Board meeting. He then asked if there were any items the
Trustees wished to remove from the Consent Agenda for
individual consideration/discussion under Action Items, and
there were none.

MOTION: (Shaw — Brown) The motion was made to approve
the Consent Agenda, as recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.
President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 2, Human Resources: Award

of Continuing Contracts, on agenda page 540.

MOTION: (Hawkins — Miri) The motion was made to approve
the Award of Continuing Contracts, as recommended.
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Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano noted he was pleased to recognize the full-
time faculty members receiving continuing contract status at
today’s meeting. He asked Provost and Vice President of
Academic Affairs Dr. John Wall to introduce the members.

Provost/Vice President Wall thanked President Avendano for
recognizing the faculty that successfully completed the
application process for this year. He shared that each member
had demonstrated a standard of excellence and commitment to
the College and its philosophy and mission, consistent with
established criteria for the award of continuing contract. He
thanked all the members for their dedication to FSCJ.

Provost/Vice President Wall introduced each member and asked
that they share the most rewarding aspect of their teaching
position at FSCJ. The faculty members present did so,
accordingly.

President Avendano thanked the members, noting their
commitment to the institution, students and community.

The names of all the full-time faculty members receiving
continuing contract status, effective with the 2023-24 faculty
contract year are as follows:

e Monica Brown, Professor of Health Information
Technology

e Judith Bernanke, Professor of Humanities

e Thomas Scott Cason, Professor of Humanities

e Virginie Lorang-Woodward, Professor of French

e Heather Wilson, Professor of Biological Services

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 3, Human Resources: Faculty
Sabbaticals, on agenda pages 541 — 542.

MOTION: (Brown — Hawkins) The motion was made to
approve a faculty sabbatical for full-time faculty members —
Jennifer Chase, Professor of Communications; Chris Perle,
Professor of Biological Sciences; and Glenna Veiga, Professor
of Spanish and English for Academic Purposes, effective with
the 2023-24 faculty contract year, as recommended.
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Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 4, Finance: Fees and Charges,
on agenda page 543.

MOTION: (Hawkins — Brown) The motion was made to
approve the Fees and Charges, as recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 5, Finance: FSCJ ACCESS
Program, on agenda page 544.

MOTION: (Shaw — Miri) The motion was made to approve the
FSCJ ACCESS Program for Summer Term 2023, as
recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 6, Finance: Fiscal Year 2022-
23 Operating Budget Amendment No. 3, on agenda pages 545 —
546.

MOTION: (Hawkins — Young) The motion was made to
approve the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Operating Budget Amendment
No. 3, as recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 7, Finance: Fiscal Year 2022-
23 Capital Outlay Budget Amendment No. 2, on agenda pages
547 — 549.
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MOTION: (Hawkins — Brown) The motion was made to
approve the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Capital Outlay Budget
Amendment No. 2, as recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 8, Facilities: Authorization to
Negotiate Sale of FSCJ’s Real Property at 940 N. Main Street
(Main Street Complex), on agenda pages 550 — 550-A.

MOTION: (Hawkins — Miri) The motion was made to approve
the Authorization to Negotiate the Sale of FSCJ’s Real Property
at 940 N. Main Street (Main Street Complex), as recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano presented the administration’s
recommendation on Action Item 9, Security: Creation of the
Florida State College at Jacksonville Police Department, on
agenda page 551.

MOTION: (Brown — Shaw) The motion was made to approve
the Creation of the Florida State College at Jacksonville Police
Department, as recommended.

Chair Bell asked if there were any questions or comments by
the Board, and there were none.

Motion carried unanimously.

President Avendano shared his appreciation for the Board’s due
diligence — for their research, questions and time given to the
item. He noted given the nature of the item and what we have
seen around us in the world today, it is a step in the right
direction for the institution to keep the College community,
faculty, staff and students as safe as possible. He thanked the
Trustees for allowing the College to do so with this motion.

INFORMATION ITEMS: Chair Bell asked the Board if there were any questions or

(Ref. Board Agenda for comments related to Information Items A — D, on agenda pages
April 11, 2023; Items 552 — 668, and there were none.

A — D, Pages 202300552

—668)
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REPORT OF THE BOARD
CHAIR:

REPORT OF TRUSTEES:

REPORT OF THE BOARD
FINANCE & AUDIT
COMMITTEE CHAIR:

REPORT OF THE BOARD
LIAISON. FSCJ
FOUNDATION BOARD OF

DIRECTORS:

REPORT OF THE
ADMINISTRATIVE AND
PROFESSIONAL
COLLABORATIVE (APC):

REPORT OF THE CAREER
EMPLOYEES® COUNCIL

(CEC):

REPORT OF THE FACULTY

SENATE (Senate):

Chair Bell reported on how proud he was while in the
community and the high quality of FSCJ programs and
instructors — specific to Nassau County and the EMT program,
noting community members frequently stop him and share their
glowing comments about the College. The community really
believes in FSCJ and the quality of education that the institution
provides. This makes him very happy and proud to be a part of
FSCI.

There were no reports provided by Trustees.

The FSCJ Finance & Audit Committee Chair Hunt Hawkins
provided the Board with an overview of the written report
relating to the April 2023 quarterly meeting. (Appendix A)

The next meeting of the FSCJ Finance & Audit Committee is
scheduled for Tuesday, May 16, 2023, at the College’s
Administrative Offices, Board Room 405. The Committee will
meet at noon along with the full Board for a DBOT Deep Dive
Budget Workshop.

President Avendano provided the Board with an update of UF’s
status in downtown, Jacksonville.

On behalf of FSCJ Foundation Board Liaison Thomas
McGehee, Jr., Executive Director of the FSCJ Foundation
Cleve Warren provided the Board with an overview of the
written report relating to the FSCJ Foundation Board of
Directors quarter-to-quarter Board meetings along with other
committee meetings and activities. (Appendix B)

Administrative and Professional Collaborative Chair Kerry
Roth provided the Board with a written report relating to current
APC initiatives and activities. (Appendix C)

Career Employees Council Chair Phillip Delacruz addressed the
Board and provided a brief bio of himself. He then presented an
overview of the written report relating to current CEC
initiatives and activities. (Appendix D)

Faculty Senate President Dr. John Woodward provided the
Board with a written report relating to current Senate initiatives
and activities. (Appendix E)
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REPORT OF THE STUDENT  Collegewide Student Government Association President
GOVERNMENT Breana White provided the Board with a written report relating
ASSOCIATION (SGA): to current SGA initiatives and activities. (Appendix F)

NEXT MEETING: Chair Bell announced the Board will meet on Tuesday, May 16,

2023, at the College’s Administrative Offices for a Budget
Workshop. The workshop will convene at noon in Board Room
405. The next regular meeting of the Board is scheduled for
Tuesday, June 13, 2023.

TOUR OF FSCJ KENT Chair Bell announced that following today’s meeting Trustees

CAMPUS: would be provided with a guided tour of the College’s Kent
Campus, to include the FinTech lab area. He asked Trustees to
remain if they were available to attend the tour.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, Chair Bell declared the
meeting adjourned at 2:00 p.m.

TOUR OF FSCJ NORTH FSCJ Director of Program Development Dr. Johnny Bowman

CAMPUS: Jr. led the tour of FSCJ’s FinTech lab area at Kent Campus, and

Kent Campus Dean Terrance Wright led the tour of the various
campus program areas. President Avendano, Chair Bell and
Trustees Hawkins, Miri, Odom, Shaw and Young were in
attendance. There were no decisions made while the tour was
conducted. The tour convened from 2:15 —2:55 p.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Chair, District Board of Trustees

Executive Secretary, District Board of Trustees

Submitted by: Kimberli Sodek, Secretary to the Board
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REPORT OF THE FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

COMMITTEE CHAIR, TRUSTEE HUNT HAWKINS
APRIL 11, 2023

Vice President of Finance and Administration and Controller Lindsey Thomas provided an
overview of the annual audit of the College’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
june 30, 2022. The audit did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that the auditors consider to be material weaknesses. In addition, the results of
the tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

As presented in the 2021-22 financial statements, the College’s assets and deferred
outflows of resources totaled $311 million and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
totaled $115 million. The year-end balance of $195 million represents an increase of
$15 million in net position.

Vice President Ford and Associate Vice President for Administrative Services Steve
Stanford discussed the Interim Financial Statements for the quarter ended February 28,
2023. Currently, student fees are down approximately $1.4 million due to the decrease in
enrollment. HEERF funds are being used to cover tuition and fee revenue loss through
FY 2022-23. The expiration date for these funds is June 30, 2023. State appropriations,
contracts and grants, and auxiliary revenues are trending as anticipated. Salary expenses
are trending $3 million less than budgeted. The reduction in salary expenses will be used
to address the increase in utilities and the cost of goods and services.

Vice President Ford and Associate Vice President Stanford provided a review of the
proposed allocation of additional recurring state funding which could range from
$4.3 million to $7.7 million. There is also a possibility of $2.1 million for expansion of the
nursing program. If realized, the additional state allocations, the strategies implemented
to reduce salary expenditures, as well as the stabilizing of enrollment should allow the
College to consistently maintain a balanced budget in the absence of HEERF funds.

College President John Avendano, Ph.D. provided an overview of the potential sale of the
Main Street Building Complex. The College obtained an independent property appraisal
that included an estimated value of $4.6 million which is also the offering price from JWB
Real Estate Capital, LLC. The future sale would allow the College to recover value in assets
it no longer has the intentions of utilizing, and redirect resources to other capital projects.
Any future plans for the proceeds will be brought to the Board for approval, once
determined.

President Avendano also provided an update on the plans for the UF Downtown Campus.

This concludes my report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD LIAISON, TRUSTEE MAC MCGEHEE

APRIL 11, 2023

1. Work on the Campaign Readiness Study with Erin Phillips; Gonser Gerber, continues to
march forward to an August/September 2023 completion deadline.

2. Erin's task over the next several months will include:
a) Completion of the Case Statement.
b) Interview approximately 50-60 donors and community stakeholders for
perceptions and interest in giving to the Capital Campaign.
) Advise the talent search for additions to the Foundation Development Team.
d) Conduct training on vetting and the on-boarding of new Foundation Board
members.

3. Prospect Management, donor mining, and donor cultivation have been major
components of the training provided by Gonser Gerber to staff and Foundation Board
members. The effect has led to more effective stewardship practices with Foundation
donors and constituent groups.

4. In the wake of the Silicon Valley Bank collapse, and the bank's place as a facilitator of
cash transactions in private equity and venture capital markets, the Foundation has
been very timely in sharing situational information with its members about the
impact/or non-impact to its investment holdings, and in including them in virtual
updates from its investment advisors; the Commonfund.

5. As of February 28, 2023, the aggregate market value of the investment portfolio was
$66,442,873. Earnings from the portfolio provide the source to fund scholarships and
programs at the College, and total funding for staff and operations of the Foundation.

6. The next “Regular Meeting” of the Foundation Board of Directors (FBOD) will be held
on Thursday, May 18, 2023; a little out of sequence with its normal calendar quarter
month meeting rotation, adjusted to accommodate some board governance training
to be conducted by Gonser Gerber.

7. Atits May 2023 meeting, the Foundation Board looks to review and approve its Annual
Audit with recommendation from the Finance and Audit Committee, and on approval
will then forward the audit on to the FSCJ District Board of Trustee for approval.

This concludes my report.
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Date: April 11, 2023

To: Florida State College at Jacksonville District Board of Trustees

From: Kerry Roth, Chair of the Administrative and Professional Collaborative, 2022-2023
Re: April 2023 Administrative and Professional Collaborative Report

Chair Bell and Trustees:

The Administrative and Professional Collaborative (APC) is proud to share updates since our last
report.

APC Speed Networking events resumed in March and provide an opportunity for administrative and
professional employees to meet with colleagues in order to network and build professional
connections.

In February and March, APC Representatives hosted informational meetings at their campuses and
centers to share updates and gather feedback from A&P employees.

The APC hosted a social on Thursday, March 2 at 5:30 p.m. at River & Post (Rooftop) where
employees were able to socialize and network.

The APC Member Spotlight featured Dr. Renata Henderson in March and currently features
Michael Pugh for the month of April.

Dr. Jerrett Dumouchel, FSCJ Vice President of Institutional Effectiveness and Advancement will
serve as the April APC Brown Bag Lunch Series speaker and will share updates on the SACSCOC
reaffirmation process. This presentation will be open to all employees. After the presentation,

Dr. Dumouchel will attend the APC meeting on May 4, 2023, to answer any questions the APC
Officers and Representatives may have.

Previously, it was shared that Dr. Avendano gathered a group of Administrative and Professional
Collaborative, Career Employee Council, and Executive Leadership Team members to serve on an
Interest Based Problem Solving (IBPS) committee to address the issues and interests regarding the
CARE Project. Using IBPS, the committee continues to identify issues, causes and effects, interests,
and data/resources needed relating to the CARE Project.

On Friday, March 31, a call for nominations for the 2023-2024 APC Chair-Elect, Secretary, and
campus/center representatives was emailed out to all A&P employees. The deadline for nominations
is May 17, elections will take place between May 22-26, and the newly elected officers and
representatives will assume their new roles on July 1.

Finally, we will continue to invite College President Dr. J ohn Avendano to our monthly meetings to
provide us with updates and take time to address higher-level issues.

Respectfully,

Kerry Roth
Associate Director of Student Success
Administrative and Professional Collaborative Chair, 2022-2023
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To:  Florida State College at Jacksonville District Board of Trustees
From: Phillip Delacruz, Career Employees’ Council Chair, 2022-2023
Re:  April 2023 Career Employees’ Council Report

Chair Bell and Trustees:

Thank you for this opportunity to share with you the most recent and numerous milestones achieved
by the Career Employees’ Council (CEC). In my report for you, I am pleased to share that the Council
is currently focused on examining many ways in which it may improve in, and sustain, operational
effectiveness when serving as a collaborative problem-solving partner to any/all actionable data in
support of the success of students, College, and staft. In this vein, the milestones shared in this report
highlight our focus on:

Operational Effectiveness

Firstly, the Council has been very active in improving its governance of policies, actions, and agility
in handling affairs — as well as newly developing objective criteria on measures of success. In the
broad interest of facilitating improved synergy with all stakeholders, on November 9, 2022, the
Council’s Bylaws Committee was charged with completing the contemporizing of the Council’s
Bylaws (last revised in 2015). The Bylaws Revision was completed on March 3, 2023, and is now
available to upcoming Representatives’ vote for adoption. In culmination, the overarching Bylaws
Revision Project policies are designed to:

e Enhance our recruiting success and team compositions — so that organizational alignments,
paired with individual(s) strengths, experience, and interests may bolster service work efforts

e Promote leadership, team and community-building, via integral subcommittee service work

e Provide an improved framework in which our Representatives may engage, organize, execute,
monitor, and evaluate initiatives

e Enhance the quality of communications, information, and support response time for our
Collegewide stakeholders

The CEC Board expresses great appreciation (in no particular order) to Audrey Antee, Vanessa
Gordon, Brian Keane, Lisa Moore, and Shannon Oliver for the invaluable assistance and progress
on this vital project.

Secondly, specific to enhancing vision planning, service capacity, and transparency of Council
operations, the CEC SharePoint Website (https:/fscj.sharepoint.com/teams/CareerEmployeeCouncil)
was redeveloped and re-released on January 22, 2023, as a forward-facing intranet communication
centerpiece for "All Employees." Within, added emphasis was placed on Customer Focus, "Ask for
Help" Resources (to help bridge any gaps in communication and responsiveness), Community
Engagement, and Project Management. Future action plans include exploring additional solutions
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that may provide employees greater access to our Campus/Center Representatives, Team Charter
frameworks, as well as providing our Publicity Committee with communication outlets dedicated to
employee welcoming, recognition, and recruitment. The Council worked diligently to provide this
content within a short span of build time (under one-month) —on which, the Council is most grateful
for the continued Web Development and Publicity volunteerism.

Employment Enhancements

For employment enhancement initiatives — as per Council’s Bylaws Mission to “Conduct ongoing
studies and make recommendations on policies and procedures for, but not limited to” employment
policies and procedures — late last year, the Council was aligned with the Administrative and
Professional Collaborative to form the APC & CEC Joint Commiittee for Employee Enhancements.
This Joint Committee then aligned with members of the Executive Leadership Team to form the
broader Interest-Based Problem-Solving (IBPS) Committee. In progression, I am pleased to report
that the team has been working, with great unity, on The CARE Project Discussion. As of February 23,
2022, the team has progressed to IBPS Phase 5 (of 6), "Brainstorm Multiple Solutions” — with Phase 6,
«“Reach Consensus on Preferred Options” on the near horizon. The Council wishes to express gratitude
to President Avendano, Dr. Wanda Ford, Mark Lacey for the opportunity to assist on this task, and to
Audrey Antee for seamless facilitation.

Fundraising and Professional Development

On the Fundraising and Professional Development milestones, the Council executed its annual holiday
season Poinsettia and Ferns Sale Event on December 9, 2022, to raise proceeds for the upcoming
Spring Book Scholarship Awards — in support of FSCJ Employees' Education and Professional
Development ambitions. The Council acknowledges its signature Fundraising Event would not be
possible without the exceptional planning and execution of the event by Tamera Meyer, Camilla
Collins, and Cynthia Motzny. Equal appreciation is expressed to the many invaluable Career Employee
Representatives that personally delivered the goods to our charitable, collegial patrons. As a result of
the fundraiser, our Book Scholarship Awards Committee, chaired by Stephanie Castro, was able to
extend the awards to 4 recipients — an increase of one over last year.

Community Engagement

Additionally, regarding community engagement service projects, Council members aligned with
members of the Association of Florida Colleges, and the Administrative and Professional
Collaborative (APC) to organize and provide employees, on December 2, 2022, the FSCJ Winter
Gala: A Holiday Season Community Engagement event involving a full dining experience (3-course
meal), a FSCJ Jazz Band musical performance, a DJ and social dancing segment, and an employee
recognition segment to top it off. The Council commends Bryan Stewart for leading the well-
orchestrated event planning and for the opportunity to contribute to what was referred to as a “well-
received and enjoyable” community engagement event by some of those that attended.

Lastly, on January 17, 2023, the Council joined members of the APC and Faculty to form the FSCJ
Employee Recreational Sports Planning Committee with APC Chair, Kerry Roth, serving as Lead.
In alignment with the broader Visionary Impact Plan 2. 1.2, Strategic Initiative specified as, “Create
affinity groups and mentoring opportunities for current faculty and staff,” the Council received
clearance from VIP 2.0 oversight to begin developing affinity group proposals within Employee
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Governance Groups. In this community engagement case, Career Employee affinity groups may center
on the interests of “Physical Fitness,” and “Health and Wellness.” This Committee has submitted its
proposed programing to the broader HR Health and Wellness Committee for consideration and
partnership, and it hopes to deliver on employee engagement activities during the upcoming summer
semester — when facilities are more readily available for employee use.

In summation, the Council is committed to the Mission, Vision, and Values of FSCJ. It is fully
committed to ensuring that students have a positive and successful student experience. We look
forward to continued collaboration as we continue to make FSCJ a great place for our students to
achieve their educational goals and for our current and future employees to achieve their professional
goals.

On behalf of the Career Employees, we express our appreciation to the District Board of Trustees
for your time, effort, and support that you bring to the College community, staff, and students.

Respectfully,

Phillip Delacruz, MFA

Career Employees’ Council Chair, 2022-2023
Florida State College at Jacksonville
904-646-2178 / phillip.delacruz@fscj.edu
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To:  Florida State College at Jacksonville District Board of Trustees.
From: John A. Woodward, PhD

Re:  April 2023 Faculty Senate Report

Chair Bell and Fellow Trustees:

Enrollment is at the forefront of our faculty members’ minds. I know this is a common refrain in
my recent letters, and I know this is also a concern for many at the institution. I am also aware that
this is a nationwide issue that is rooted in past bad practices as well as changing concepts related to
the value of a higher education. When I look at the recent article from the Hechinger Report (Jon
Marcus, ““The reckoning is here’: more than a third of community college students have vanished,”
The Hechinger Report [April 3, 2024] https://hechingerreport.org/the-reckoning-is-here-more-than-
a-third-of-community-college-students-have-vanished/ ) T can see descriptions of some of the same
complaints I have heard from my students over the past decade. Institutional disorganization, which
for us can lead students chasing answers across campuses and across Jacksonville, was a key feature
of how this article describes the failures of institutions to help students succeed. We have gotten
better in this regard, there is no doubt. And we are getting much better at getting financial aid into
the pockets of students sooner by modifying policies such as our “never attended” policy process.
These changes will have slow repercussions over the next few years that we hope will help rebuild
our relationship with the community and potential students.

However, our institutional failures and occasional incompetence in the past do not fully explain
where we are now. For one, we are demonstrably better in our processes now than we were several
years ago and more efficient in getting students through the enrollment pipeline. We are seeing
success rates in online tick up slightly with new pedagogical practices. Through work that helps

us analyze and understand the cultural, social, economic heterogeneity of our community and our
student body, we are designing better course materials and practices to help us reach wider
populations. There seem to be other forces at work against us.

One is the economic reality our students face. Online education is getting cheaper, even those
programs offered by larger universities. Our students are also well aware of the job market and
find it impossible to pass up job opportunities that pay relatively high salaries — without requiring

a degree. Even the ‘gig’ economy has had an impact, pulling our students away from their studies
and into an immediate source of cash income. The economic calculus for the immediate future does
not always add up in our favor.
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This economic calculus adds to a growing disenchantment with higher education as a whole. If

I could even map the reasons for this, they would be far too complicated to mention here. The
economy is part of this for sure. The growing recognition of the costs of higher education on the
future of students who need to take out loans to finish their degree is a component as well. And
unfortunately, the horror stories we hear reported in the news are not extreme and rare cases, but
rather much closer to the norm. And while we cannot change the national discourse around higher
education, we can focus on bettering the lives of the students who come to us and on promoting
certain qualities of higher education that are both pragmatic and idealistic.

Half of America’s Hispanic students and forty percent of America’s Black students attend
community colleges and state colleges. I know anecdotally that one of the main reasons for this is
cost and convenience. These students choose colleges not out of a desire to avoid universities or
some disdain for them, but because the costs of attendance are too high. We also know that 4 out
of 5 students who attend community colleges and state colleges intend to transfer to a four year
bachelor’s program — yet only 1 in 6 do so.

I think these facts give us direction. We need to make sure our students feel as though they are not
second class students — in other words, we need to think of them as curious adult intellectuals intent
on achieving academic ideals. We also need to make sure students are supported through to the end
of their careers and give them constant direction on either finishing and transferring to a BA or BS
degree, including into our own BS programs, or finding employment. Our Guided Pathways work
will help with this but it needs more vigorous attention and support — specifically in the classroom
and in our academic support services. Faculty need to understand the career arc of students and
work with them holistically — including understanding how the abstract values of higher education
can and do help people in their work and their personal lives. Our disorganized academic structure
in the AA degree is perhaps a hindrance to this and has eroded the community-oriented nature of
campuses.

However, a bigger difficulty is that students do not stay on one campus for all of their classes —
they are forced to move from campus to campus to find the courses they need at convenient times
and days. We need to help them understand the value of higher education as something that is not
transactional, and forcing them to fit into our disjointed schedule does not help with that process.
We do not often see students more than once or twice a week on campus because of their schedules.
This leaves us little chance to interact with them outside of the classroom or to talk about their
future plans. Working on improving our scheduling process and perhaps addressing other workload
issues will help strengthen our rapport with students and hopefully improve their outcomes.

Pedagogically I think our moves to humanize our syllabi and our online pedagogy — making the
former more readable and understandable and promoting more direct engagement with the faculty
member in the latter — put us on track to improve outcomes through our teaching. We must also
look into what students need in order to be successful in their work and private lives. I am an
academic idealist as anyone will tell you. I feel as though academics has made the human race
better. But I also know it is not feasible for many of our students to move on to a university degree.
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Reasonably, they look to the working world to provide for them and their futures. And yes, basic
mathematical and writing skills will improve their prospects. However, we cannot underplay the
importance of reasoning, argumentation, empathy, moral and ethical responsibility, and other skills.
And we should be promoting those skills as well.

Students need to learn how to be confronted with differing opinions on all manner of topics and
how to integrate their own worldview with those of their fellows in the workforce. They need to
learn how to reflect on their actions and even to reflect before acting — as well as understand their
own fallibility. They need to be able to express ideas in a professional fashion, with careful
attention to detail but also with an audience in mind. They need to learn how to analyze datasets;
but they also need to learn about the empathy that makes great leaders and great entrepreneurs.

Businesses work by understanding the demands of the client and living up to unexpressed
expectations. They need to interpret the minds and emotions of the customer. To this end, our
students need to understand Kantian moral principles. They must be able to see human beings as
ends in themselves, not as means to an end. This is what makes them successful in their work lives
and in their private lives. Higher education promotes those skills, but I think we can try to do better
and be more intentional, because a transactional mindset undermines that moral principle and
undermines the communal ties that bind us together.

That concludes my report to the Board.

Respectfully,

Py,

John Arrington Woodward, PhD
Professor of Humanities and Film Studies
Faculty Senate President

C2326B, DWC

Florida State College at Jacksonville
john.a.woodward@fscj.edu
904-997-2703



Appendix F (Page 1 of 2)

Florida State College
at Jacksonville

Date: April 11,2023

202300696

To:  Florida State College at Jacksonville District Board of Trustees

From: Florida State College at Jacksonville Student Government Association Executive Board
Re:  April 2023 Student Government Association Report

Chair Bell and Trustees:

The Student Government Association (SGA) is the voice of the student body at Florida State College
at Jacksonville (FSCJ). Please see the following updates and accomplishments for the period between
February 2023 and April 2023.

Since the last report, the SGA has accomplished the following:

e Between February 21-22, 10 members of the SGA traveled to the Tallahassee Community
College for the Florida College System Student Government Association (FCSSGA) Legislative
Conference. The students attended professional development workshops and traveled to the Capitol
building to meet with legislators regarding the bills that affect FSCJ students.

e On March 2, the International Club hosted the Carnival Brazilian Celebration at the Downtown
Campus in the Art Gallery. The event provided Brazilian food, dancing, and activities for students
and staff to enjoy.

e On March 4, the 56 Annual Talent & Variety Show was held at the Wilson Center. SGA members
attended as well as participated as judges in the oldest tradition at the College.

e This spring, members of the SGA have been able to hear professors Dr. Paul McLester (January
31), Jannefer Rojas-Coleman (March 2), Jennifer Chase (March 21), Susan Amburgey (March 30),
and Dr. David Purificato (April 6) give their Last Lecture presentations.

e During the months of March and April, the SGA hosted Spring Fling events at all of the campuses
and centers. These events featured cookouts, games, music, and information tables with various
student and community organizations to help celebrate the arrival of the spring season.

e Six members of the SGA attended the Student Activity and Service (A&S) Fee Committee
Trainings on March 22 & 25. They will be joined by other student leaders in serving on the A&S
Fee Committee and hearing funding proposals from various student clubs and areas of the College
that receive A&S fee funding. The proposals will occur between April 4-7. After hearing the
proposals, the committee will deliberate on how the funds will be disbursed for use during the
2023-2024 academic year.

e Between March 28 and April 7, members of the SGA participated in the Grad Fest Celebrations
by cheering on and serving popcorn to students as they arrived to pick up their Commencement
regalia as well learn about FSCJ baccalaureate programs and alumni information.

e Between April 14-15, 11 members of the SGA will travel to the Daytona State College for the
FCSSGA End of the Year Conference. The students will attend professional development
workshops, vote on the officers to serve on next year’s State and Region Executive Boards, submit
FSCJ’s entry into the FCSSGA Scrapbook Competition, and network with other students from
across the state.
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On behalf of the student body, we extend our deepest gratitude to the District Board of Trustees and
College President Dr. John Avendano for continuing to provide the SGA the opportunity to share
updates and accomplishments of our students. Thank you for your time and all that you do for the
students of FSCJ.

Sincerely,

Breana White
FSCJ Collegewide Student Government Association President
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-1.

Subject: Administration: Comprehensive Safety Review for 2022-23
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees approve the
College’s Comprehensive Safety Review for fiscal year 2023. The full report will be available at

the District Board of Trustees Meeting.

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to Florida Statute 1013.12 and the State Requirements for
Educational Facilities, Chapter 5(1)(a)l (SREF), each year the College is required to complete
and submit to the Board for approval a Collegewide comprehensive safety inspection report
listing safety code deficiencies. The review was conducted within the current fiscal year with a
time span beginning in September 2022 and finished in March 2023. The review encompasses all
buildings, rooms and grounds of the College Campuses and Centers. During the inspection, 767
safety deficiencies were identified. The report reflects that 751 of 767 reported deficiencies have
been corrected. The College’s Comprehensive Safety Review for 2022-23 includes the correction
or anticipated correction date and actual or estimated cost for each item.

RATIONALE: Conducting an annual comprehensive safety review of all College facilities for
fire safety, casualty and sanitation is required by Florida Statute and State Requirements for
Educational Facilities. The review assures the Board is informed in a timely manner of all
College safety deficiencies noted. None of the safety deficiencies noted are life-threatening
deficiencies which, by statute, would require the Board to withdraw the facility from use until

corrected.

FISCAL NOTES: The College has utilized its operational funds to correct all deficiencies
identified during the annual comprehensive fire safety, casualty and sanitation review.
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AGENDA ITEM NO.cA -2.

202300699

Subject: Purchasing: Annual Contract Extensions
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees authorize College
administration to extend the following annual contracts.
Extension Period Year # | Estimated Annual
of # or Not-to- Change
Bid #/ Title Supplier Exceed in Price
File # From: To: Value
1. | 2019¢C-17C el 08/01/2023 | 07/312024 | 40of5 | $600,000 1%
Enterprises, Inc.
Grounds Care & | Core Outdoors,
Maintenance Inc. D_BA/ R&
Services R Maintenance
2. 2019C-17R of Jax (Formerly 08/01/2023 07/31/2024 4 of 5 $600,000 0%
Known as: R&R
Maintenance,
Inc.)
3. | 2019C-18E E. Vaughan 07/01/2023 | 06/30/2024 | 4of5 | $2,500,000 | 0%
: Under $700K Rivers, Inc. SR
Construction
Delivery Scherer
. 0,
4. 2019C-18S Order/Job Order Construction of 07/01/2023 06/30/2024 4 of 5 $2,500,000 0%
. North FL, LLC
Contracting
Services Warden
5. 2019C-18W Construction 07/01/2023 06/30/2024 4 of5 $2,500,000 0%
Corporation
North Campus Subway Real .
6. 2016-03 Dining Services Estate, LLC 01/1/2025 12/31/2028 n/a n/a 0%
BACKGROUND: The College solicits annual indefinite quantity contracts for various services and

products used Collegewide. These contract renewals are negotiated annually for optional extension
terms. Each contract requires review to confirm satisfactory performance, terms, conditions, and
competitive renewal rates.

RATIONALE:

FISCAL NOTES:

Pursuant to State Board of Education Rule 6A-14.0734 annual indefinite quantity
contracts minimize purchase costs through collective volume buying.

the College’s operating or capital budgets.

The total amount of services provided using these contracts is comprehended in
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-3.

Subject: Purchasing: North Campus Re-Paving & Criminal Justice Center (CJC)
Driving Course & Skills Pad
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees authorize
College administration to enter into a satisfactory construction contract in the amount not to
exceed $412,900 with ShayCore, LLC as the responsive low bidder meeting the construction
documents for the North Campus Re-Paving & Criminal Justice Center Driving Course & Skills
Pad.

BACKGROUND: Re-Paving of the North Campus loading dock service drives & Criminal
Justice Center (CJC) Driving Course & Skills Pad was identified to be at end of life on the
Deferred Maintenance Program 2020 submission for the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) FY
2021-22. On October 26, 2022, a total amount of $27,329,608 was awarded to FSCJ from the
Florida Department of Education of the Federal American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021,
Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund — Deferred Maintenance Program which includes
$2,104,704 designated for Critical Life Safety, Environmental Deficiencies under the Project
Title Site Upgrades — Pavement for multiple buildings. The funding is to be fully obligated by
December 31, 2024, and fully expended with all construction completed by December 31, 2026.

Faced with the challenges described above the College selected CPH Consulting LLC (Formerly
known as CPH, Inc.) as the Engineer of Record for this project based on their extensive
experience in civil engineering projects.

A formal Invitation to Bid solicitation was issued to 48 licensed paving and general contracting
firms. As required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities Section 4.1, the
solicitation was also posted on the Florida’s My Florida Market Place Bidding System and
published in the Florida Times Union. Three firms submitted cost bids and two firms submitted
No Bids on May 18, 2023. ShayCore, LLC is being recommended as the successful low bidder
meeting the qualifications and contracting expetience.

RATIONALE: Authorization to award this contract to the responsive low bidder meeting
specifications is pursuant to State Board Rule 6A-14.0734 and will allow the project to proceed as
scheduled.

FISCAL NOTES: The required funding will come from The State of Florida Department of
Education Federal American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021, Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery
Fund — Deferred Maintenance Program.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-4.

Subject: Purchasing: Re-Roofing — Advanced Technology Center (ATC)
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees authorize
College administration to enter into a satisfactory construction contract in the amount not to
exceed $871,827.00 with BBG Contracting Group, Inc. as the responsive low bidder meeting the
construction documents for the Re-Roofing of the Advanced Technology Center (ATC)
Downtown Campus.

BACKGROUND: The Downtown Campus ATC roof was identified to be at end of life on the
Deferred Maintenance Program 2020 submission for the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) FY
2021/2022. On October 26, 2022 a total amount of $27,329,608 was awarded to FSCJ from the
Florida Department of Education of the Federal American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021,
Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund — Deferred Maintenance Program which includes
$13,730,406 designated for Environmental Deficiencies under the Project Title Building
Envelope Upgrades and Study (Roof Replacement, Curtain Wall Removal, Replacement, Re-
Roof) for multiple buildings. The funding is to be fully obligated by December 31, 2024, and
fully expended with all construction completed by December 31, 2026.

Faced with the challenges described above, the College selected Akel Logan & Shafer PA the
Architect of Record for this project based on their extensive expetience in roofing projects.

A formal Invitation to Bid solicitation was issued to 79 licensed general and roofing contracting
firms. As required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities Section 4.1, the
solicitation was published in the Florida Times Union and also posted on the Florida’s My Florida
Market Place Bidding System. On April 20, 2023, seven firms’ submissions were received, four
bidders were not qualified and deemed non responsive and three cost bids were opened. BBG
Contracting Group, Inc. is being recommended as the successful low bidder meeting the
qualifications and contracting experience.

RATIONALE:  Authorization to award this contract to the responsive low bidder meeting
specifications is pursuant to State Board Rule 6A-14.0734 and will allow the project to proceed as
scheduled.

FISCAL NOTES: The required funding will come from The State of Florida Department of
Education Federal ARP Act of 2021, Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund — Deferred
Maintenance Program.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. ca-5.

Subject: Purchasing: Re-Roofing — Downtown Campus Building A
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees authorize
College administration to enter into a satisfactory construction contract in the amount not to
exceed $847,000.00 with Register Roofing and Sheet Metal, Inc. as the responsive low bidder
meeting the construction documents for the Re-Roofing of Downtown Campus Building A.

BACKGROUND: The Downtown Campus Building A roof was identified to be at end of life
on the Deferred Maintenance Program 2020 submission for the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
FY 2021/2022. On October 26, 2022, a total amount of $27,329,608 was awarded to FSCJ from
the Florida Department of Education of the Federal American Rescue Plan (ARP) Act of 2021,
Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund — Deferred Maintenance Program which includes
$13,730,406 designated for Environmental Deficiencies under the Project Title Building
Envelope Upgrades and Study (Roof Replacement, Curtain Wall Removal, Replacement, Re-
Roof) for multiple buildings. The funding is to be fully obligated by December 31, 2024, and
fully expended with all construction completed by December 31, 2026.

Faced with the challenges described above, the College selected Akel Logan & Shafer, PA as the
Architect of Record for this project based on their extensive experience in roofing projects.

A formal Tnvitation to Bid solicitation was issued to 79 licensed general and roofing contracting
firms. As required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities Section 4.1, the
solicitation was published in the Florida Times Union and also posted on the My Florida Market
Place Bidding System. On April 24, 2023, six firms’ submissions were received. Three bidders
were prequalified, one bidder was not qualified and deemed non responsive, and two no bids were
received. Three cost bids were opened and one cost bid was deemed non responsive. Register
Roofing and Sheet Metal, Inc. is being recommended as the successful low bidder meeting the
qualifications and contracting experience.

RATIONALE: Authorization to award this contract to the responsive low bidder meeting
specifications is pursuant to State Board Rule 6A-14.0734 and will allow the project to proceed as
scheduled.

FISCAL NOTES: The required funding will come from The State of Florida Department of
Education Federal ARP Act of 2021, Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund — Deferred
Maintenance Program.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-6.

Subject: Finance: Delinquent Accounts
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees approve the
write-offs of delinquent student accounts in the amount of $122,532.

BACKGROUND: The amount requested for write-off represents delinquent receivables
incurred during FY 2020-21. A breakdown of the type of accounts is below.

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Financial Aid & VA $87,049 $587,115
Book Loans 14,334 59,961
Miscellaneous 21,149 40.213
Total $122,532 $687,289

RATIONALE: The write-off of delinquent accounts by the College of $25 or more, and
uncollectible for two (2) or more years, is in accordance with Florida State Statute 1010.03, and

Board Rule 6Hx7-4.22.

FISCAL NOTES: The College annually records bad debt expense; however, write-offs are
charged to the Balance Sheet against the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. There is no budget
impact from this write-off since the allowance balance is sufficient to cover the requests.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. cA-7.

Subject: Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the Collegewide Energy, Water
& Wastewater Performance Savings Project
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees accept the
Certificate of Final Inspection (CFI) and authorize final payment of the Collegewide Energy,
Water & Wastewater Performance Savings Project to Consolidated Edison Solutions, Inc.
(former name ConEdison Solutions Company DBA/BGA, Inc.).

BACKROUND: The Board of Trustees awarded Guaranteed Energy Performance Contracting
Services to ConEdison Solutions Company DBA/BGA, Inc. for Collegewide energy, water &
wastewater performance savings in accordance with plans and specifications developed by
Affiliated Engineers, Inc and BGA, Inc. The College issued the contract to ConEdison Solutions
Company DBA/BGA, Inc. on June 19, 2017.

The College and Con Edison have reached a settlement agreement that reflects completion of the
amended scope of work. Both parties agree that the CFI will be finalized at a date to be
determined pursuant to the settlement agreement. Both parties agree that Con Edison will
provide the final inspection for the CFI due to it not being economically feasible for the former
engineering firm to complete the task. The completion of the CFI and the final settlement for a
contract amount of $16,165,864.24 is in the College’s best interest and will bring resolution to
the project.

RATIONALE: State Requirements for Educational Facilities Chapter 4.2(3), and District
Board of Trustees Rule 6Hx7-8.5, Construction Contract Administration require the following
prior to final payment for construction contracts:

“Final Payment shall not be made until Certificate of Final Inspection has been issued, the
project has been completed, and the Board has accepted the project.”

FISCAL NOTES: Final payment to the contractor is subject to this acceptance and resolution
of all outstanding construction items.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-8.

Subject: Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the Downtown Campus —
CARES Act — Chiller Replacement, Building C
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees accept the
Certificate of Final Inspection and authorize final payment of the Downtown Campus — CARES
Act — Chiller Replacement, Building C Project to Warden Construction Corporation.

BACKROUND: The Board of Trustees awarded Contracting Services to Warden Construction
Corporation for the Downtown Campus — Chiller Replacement, Building C in accordance with
plans and specifications developed by Haddad Engineering, Inc. The College issued the contract
to Warden Construction Corporation on May 23, 2022.

A Certificate of Final Inspection (CFI) for the project was executed on May 26, 2023, by the
College’s Facilities Management & Construction Building Code Official and the Engineer of
Record, Haddad Engineering, Inc. It certifies that the Downtown Campus — Chiller Replacement,
Building C Project has been completed in accordance with the contract documents and best
construction practices.

RATIONALE: State Requirements for Educational Facilities Chapter 4.2(3), and District
Board of Trustees Rule 6Hx7-8.5, Construction Contract Administration require the following
prior to final payment for construction contracts:

“Final Payment shall not be made until Certificate of Final Inspection has been issued, the
project has been completed, and the Board has accepted the project.”

FISCAL NOTES: Final payment to the contractor is subject to this acceptance and resolution
of all outstanding construction items.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. cA-9.

Subject: Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the Downtown Campus —
CARES Act — Phase 1 — Building A, AHU-1 & 2 Replacement
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees accept the
Certificate of Final Inspection and authorize final payment of the Downtown Campus — CARES
Act — Phase 1 — Building A, AHU-1 & 2 Replacement Project to W.W. Gay Mechanical
Contractor, Inc.

BACKROUND: The Board of Trustees awarded Contracting Services to W.W. Gay
Mechanical Contractor, Inc. for the replacement of air handler units (AHUs) 1 & 2 for
Downtown Campus, Building A in accordance with plans and specifications developed by
Harvard Jolly, Inc. The College issued the contract to W.W. Gay Mechanical Contractor, Inc. on
October 7, 2021.

A Certificate of Final Inspection (CFI) for the project was executed on April 28, 2023, by the
College’s Facilities Management & Construction Building Code Official and the Architect of
Record, Harvard Jolly, Inc. It certifies that the Downtown Campus — CARES Act — Phase 1 —
Building A, AHU-1 & 2 Replacement Project has been completed in accordance with the
contract documents and best construction practices.

RATIONALE: State Requirements for Educational Facilities Chapter 4.2(3), and District
Board of Trustees Rule 6Hx7-8.5, Construction Contract Administration require the following
prior to final payment for construction contracts:

“Final Payment shall not be made until Certificate of Final Inspection has been issued, the
project has been completed, and the Board has accepted the project.”

FISCAL NOTES: Final payment to the contractor is subject to this acceptance and resolution
of all outstanding construction items.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-10.

Subject: Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for the North Campus — ARP Act —
Roof Replacement, Criminal Justice Center
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees accept the
Certificate of Final Inspection and authorize final payment of the North Campus — ARP Act —
Roof Replacement, Criminal Justice Center Project to BBG Contracting Group, Inc.

BACKROUND: The Board of Trustees awarded a construction contract in the amount of
$387,141.72 to BBG Contracting Group Inc. for replacing the Criminal Justice Center roof at
North Campus. The roof was replaced in accordance with plans and specifications developed by
Akel, Logan & Shafer, PA. The College issued a contract to BBG Contracting Group, Inc. on
February 22, 2023.

A Certificate of Final Inspection (CFI) for the project was executed on April 21, 2023, by the
College’s Facilities Management and Construction Building Code Official and the Architect of
Record, Akel, Logan & Shafer, PA. It certifies that the North Campus — Roof Replacement,
Criminal Justice Center has been completed in accordance with the contract documents and best
construction practices.

RATIONALE: State Requirements for Educational Facilities Chapter 4.2(3), and District
Board of Trustees Rule 6Hx7-8.5, Construction Contract Administration require the following
prior to final payment for construction contracts:

“Final Payment shall not be made until Certificate of Final Inspection has been issued, the
project has been completed, and the Board has accepted the project.”

FISCAL NOTES:  Final payment to the contractor is subject to this acceptance and resolution
of all outstanding construction items.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. CA-11.

Subject: Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for North Campus — ARP Act —
Paving & Restriping — Parking Lots 1-4 & 6
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees accept the
Certificate of Final Inspection and authorize final payment of the North Campus — ARP Act -
Paving & Restriping — Parking Lots 1-4 & 6 Project to Pars Construction Services.

BACKROUND: The Board of Trustees awarded Contracting Services to Pars Construction
Services for North Campus — Paving & Restriping — Parking Lots 1-4 & 6 in accordance with
plans and specifications developed by CPH, Inc. The College issued the contract to Pars
Construction Services on November 9, 2022.

A Certificate of Final Inspection (CFI) for the project was executed on June 1, 2023, by the
College’s Facilities Management & Construction Building Code Official and the Engineer of
Record, CPH Inc. It certifies that the North Campus — Paving & Restriping — Parking Lots 1-4 &
6 has been completed in accordance with the contract documents and best construction practices.

RATIONALE: State Requirements for Educational Facilities Chapter 4.2(3), and District
Board of Trustees Rule 6Hx7-8.5, Construction Contract Administration require the following
prior to final payment for construction contracts:

“Final Payment shall not be made until Certificate of Final Inspection has been issued, the
project has been completed, and the Board has accepted the project.”

FISCAL NOTES: Final payment to the contractor is subject to this acceptance and resolution
of all outstanding construction items.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. cA-12.

Subject: Facilities: Certificate of Final Inspection for South Campus — CARES Act —
Phase 2 — Chiller Replacement, Building A
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees accept the
Certificate of Final Inspection and authorize final payment of the South Campus — CARES Act —
Chiller Replacement, Building A Project to Warden Construction Corporation.

BACKROUND: The Board of Trustees awarded Contracting Services to Warden Construction
Corporation for South Campus — Chiller Replacement, Building A in accordance with plans and
specifications developed by Haddad Engineering, Inc. The College issued the contract to Warden
Construction Corporation on May 4, 2022.

A Certificate of Final Inspection (CFI) for the project was executed on May 26, 2023, by the
College’s Facilities Management & Construction Building Code Official and the Engineer of
Record, Haddad Engineering, Inc. It certifies that the South Campus — Chiller Replacement,
Building A Project has been completed in accordance with the contract documents and best
construction practices.

RATIONALE: State Requirements for Educational Facilities Chapter 4.2(3), and District
Board of Trustees Rule 6Hx7-8.5, Construction Contract Administration require the following
prior to final payment for construction contracts:

“Final Payment shall not be made until Certificate of Final Inspection has been issued, the
project has been completed, and the Board has accepted the project.”

FISCAL NOTES: Final payment to the contractor is subject to this acceptance and resolution
of all outstanding construction items.



RECOMMENDATION:

Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. A-1.

the Consent Agenda as presented, with the exception of:

Item , Title , page(s)
Item , Title , page(s)
Item , Title , page(s)
Item , Title , page(s)
Item , Title . page(s)
Item , Title , page(s)
Item , Title , page(s)
Item  , Title , page(s)
Item  , Title , page(s)
Item  , Title , page(s)
Item  , Title , page(s)
Item  , Title , page(s)
Item  , Title , page(s)

The item(s) above has been removed from the Consent Agenda for individual

consideration.

202300710

It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees approve
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. A-2.

Subject: Administration: Annual Salary Index
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees approve the
2023-24 Salary Index as part of the Pay Plan.

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to 6Hx7-3.3 of the Rules of the Board of Trustees, the
administration is to develop for Board approval an annual salary index as part of the College Pay
Plan

RATIONALE: The Salary Index establishes the minimum and maximum salary for each job
description.

FISCAL NOTES: The item has no economic impact.
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2023-24 SALARY INDEXES

Career Positions

MIN HRLY
$23,173.00 $11.59
$23,173.00 $11.59
$23,173.00 $11.59
$23,173.00 $11.59
$23,173.00 $11.59
$23,712.00 $11.86
$24,864.00 $12.43
$26,352.00 $13.18
$28,200.00 $14.10
$29,270.00 $14.64
$29,904.00 $14.95
$31,320.00 $15.66
$32,880.00 $16.44
$34,896.00 $17.45
$36,672.00 $18.34
$38,808.00 $19.40
$41,160.00 $20.58
$43,656.00 $21.83
$46,320.00 $23.16
$49,128.00 $24.56
$51,600.00 $25.80

A&P Positions

MIN HRLY
$40,512.00 $20.26
$43,008.00 $21.50
$45,672.00 $22.84
$48,480.00 $24.24
$50,952.00 $25.48
$53,544.00 $26.77
$56,256.00 $28.13
$59,088.00 $29.54
$62,184.00 $31.09
$65,976.00 $32.99
$69,336.00 $34.67
$73,584.00 $36.79
$77,328.00 $38.66

$81,264.00 $40.63

MAX
$32,640.00
$34,536.00
$36,672.00
$38,808.00
$40,800.00
$42,816.00
$45,000.00
$47,688.00
$51,072.00
$52,686.00
$54,216.00
$56,904.00
$59,712.00
$63,408.00
$66,576.00
$70,632.00
$74,952.00
$77,952.00
$82,704.00
$87,744.00
$92,160.00

MAX
$74,328.00
$77,328.00
$82,080.00
$87,144.00
$91,608.00
$96,192.00

$100,104.00
$105,168.00
$110,616.00
$116,208.00
$123,360.00
$130,968.00
$137,616.00
None
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. A-3.

Subject: Human Resources: Florida College System Annual Equity Update Report
Meeting Date: June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the District Board of Trustees approve the
submission of the College’s 2022-2023 Annual Equity Update Report to the Florida Department
of Education as required by Florida Statute.

BACKGROUND: The College is required annually to provide a status report of efforts made
to comply with Florida Statutes as they relate to nondiscrimination and equal access to
postsecondary education and employment. The Annual College Equity Update Report serves to
document efforts by each college in the Florida College System to meet federal laws related to
civil rights and nondiscrimination in the treatment and admission of students and employees. The
Report includes a review of:

Policies and Procedures that Prohibit Discrimination

College Employment Equity Accountability Plan

Strategies to Overcome Underrepresentation of Students

Substitution Waivers for Admissions and Course Substitutions for Eligible Students with
Disabilities

e Gender Equity in Athletics

Florida Department of Education (FLDOE) requires assurance of compliance with certain
Federal laws that prohibit discrimination or denial of services based on race, color, national
origin, gender or disability. Florida’s public colleges are required, in part, to include in their
reports plans to increase diversity among its students and employees, and to develop methods
and strategies to increase the participation of students of a particular race, ethnicity, national
origin, gender, disability, or marital status in programs and courses in which they may have been
traditionally underrepresented.

A copy of the full Report has been provided to Trustees individually.

RATIONALE: The item is presented to inform the District Board of Trustees of the
requirements of the Community College Educational Equity Act and to comply with the
reporting requirements.

FISCAL NOTES: The item has no economic impact.
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Florida State College at Jacksonville
District Board of Trustees

AGENDA ITEM NO. A-4

Subject: Finance: Direct Support Organization Checklist and Annual Audit
for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022
Meeting Date: ~ June 13, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: The annual financial audit for Florida State College at Jacksonville
Foundation, Inc. for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, and the attached audit checklist, is
submitted to the District Board of Trustees for review pursuant to F.S. 1004.70(6).

BACKGROUND: The Foundation must submit for review its annual financial audit to the
Office of the Auditor General, the State Board of Education, and the Florida State College at
Jacksonville District Board of Trustees within 9 months of its fiscal year end.

The audit was prepared by Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP in accordance with rules adopted by
the Auditor General pursuant to s. 11.45(8). In the opinion of the auditor, “the annual financial
audit of the Foundation presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Foundation as of September 30, 2022, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows
for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.”

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: The decrease in current assets in the
current fiscal year is largely due to accounts receivable due from the College. At September 30,
2022 and 2021, accounts receivable due from the college totaled $5,950,643 and $11,627,991,
respectively. Amounts due from the college are associated with unearned revenue from prepaid
subscribers and advance ticket sales for the 2023 Artist Series season. The increase in current
assets in the prior fiscal year is largely due to accounts receivable due from the College of
$11,627,991 associated with unearned revenue from prepaid subscribers and advance ticket sales
for the 2022 Artist Series season.

The 15% decrease in investments from $72.2 million to $61.3 million is due largely to a decrease
in the fair value of certain endowed assets during the year ended September 30, 2022, as was the
27% increase in investments from $57 million to $72.2 million was due largely to an increase in
the fair value of certain endowed assets during the year ended September 30, 2021.

RATIONALE: Submission and review of the Foundation’s annual financial audit and audit
checklist to the District Board of Trustees follows F.S. 1004.70(6).

FISCAL NOTES: There is no fiscal impact to the College associated with acceptance of the
audit.
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Florida State College
at Jacksonville
Foundation, Inc.

Independent Auditor’s Report,
Financial Statements, and
Supplementary Information

September 30, 2022 and 2021
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
Jacksonville, FL

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (the
“Foundation”), a direct-support organization and component unit of the Florida State College at
Jacksonville, which comprise of the statements of net position as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and
the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial
position of the Foundation as of September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its revenues,
expenses, and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control refevant to the preparation of financial
statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that these financial statements are available
to be issued.

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. 1
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Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statementis

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal contrel. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

Regquired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statement. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. 2
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Report on Suppiementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of the
Foundation taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required
by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards for the year ended September 30, 2022, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 18, 2023,
on our consideration of the Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

FORVIS,LLP

Jacksonville, FL
May 18, 2023

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. 3
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Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (‘MD&A”) provides an overview of the financial position and activities
of Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) for the years ended September 30, 2022
and 2021, and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and related notes.

The Foundation is a direct-support organization and a component unit of Florida State College at Jacksonville (the
“College™), a governmental agency. The Foundation’s mission is to secure financial resources for Florida State
College at Jacksonville to provide students in need access to an affordable, quality education and to enhance the
lives and the economic development of Northeast Florida.

The Foundation’s financial statements are presented on an accrual basis, which includes (1) assets and liabilities
as current and noncurrent; (2) revenues and expenses as operating and non-operating; (3) the use of the direct
method for the statement of cash flows; and (4) management’s discussion and analysis of the financial results.

The MD&A focuses on current activities, resulting changes and currently known facts to provide the reader with an
overall summary of the accompanying financial statements. It should be read in conjunction with the basic financial
statements and accompanying notes.

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 35, the Foundation’s financial report consists of these basic financial statements:
s Statements of Net Position
« Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
e Statements of Cash Flows

e Notes to Financial Statements

Financial highlights
September September September
30, 2022 30, 2021 30, 2020
Contributions $ 2,636,419 $ 2,541,202 $ 1,172,357
Permanent endowments (included) 131,132 144,480 99,107
Scholarships 1,128,632 791,323 768,885
Artist Series — net operating income 3,163,066 2,565,958 517,845
Patron contributions (included) 91,312 328,266 470,088
Unearned ticket revenue 3,609,697 12,209,589 7,999,939
Net appreciation (depreciation) in investments {10,359,259) 16,142,827 2,799,774
Net investment income (loss) (102,619) (117,901) (55,468)
Change in net position (8,983,591} 17,886,426 1,411,750
Net position, end of year 66,899,151 75,882,742 57,996,316
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Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The $3,609,697 in unearned ticket revenue for the Artist Series is a result of advance ticket sales for the upcoming
2023 season, which typically starts in November/December. These advance ticket sales speak to the high renewal
rate of the Artist Series’ annual subscribers and continued community interest in the various shows that are
presented.

Cash contributions to the Foundation for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, include major gifts greater
than $50,000 from donors such as Bank of America Foundation, Florida Blue Foundation, Fidelity Foundation, and
PMK Foundation.

State of Florida Grant Programs (Dr. Philip Benjamin Matching). At September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation
had $18.5 million and $16.4 million, respectively, of state matching funds for eligible donations (which are
temporarily suspended) that may be funded by the State at a future date.

First Generation Matching Grant Program provided additional scholarship funding. Approved by the Florida
Legislature, the program provides state matching funds for unrestricted coniributions received by the Foundation
and dedicated for this purpose at the sole discretion of the Foundation. In fiscal year 2022, the Foundation received
$85,273 of private contributions and a 100% state match allotment on those funds. The primary purpose of the
program is to provide scholarship opportunities to students who are first-generation college students in their family.

Statements of Net Position

The purpose of the Statements of Net Position is to present the Foundation's financial condition as of the end of
the fiscal year. The Statements of Net Position will enable the reader to determine the Foundation's ability to
continue its operations, amounts owed to vendors and creditors, and the assets that are available to pay
expenditures of the Foundation.

The following represents a condensed statements of net position and the changes in the Foundation’s assets,
lizbilities and net position:

Condensed Statements of Net Position

September September September FY 22-21 FY 21-20
30, 2022 30, 2021 30, 2020 Change Change
Assets:
Current $ 11,111,697 $ 18,030,685 $ 10,400,501 $ (6,918,998) § 7,630,184
Noncurrent 61,436,154 72,643,682 57.575.289 (11,107.528) 14,968,393
Total assets $ 72,547.851 $ 90574377 $67.975.790 $(18.026,526) § 22.598,587
Liabilities:
Total liabilities $ 5648.700 $ 14691635 $ 9979474 3 (9.042935) $ 4712161
Net position:
Restricted by
donors 6,040,196 5,068,856 2,147,014 971,340 2,921,842
Permanent endowments 27,292,721 33,464,631 26,312,399 (6,171,810) 7,152,232
Unrestricted
Board appropriated 33,566,234 35,874,999 27,927,915 (2,308,765) 7,947,084
Unappropriated - 1,474,256 1,608,888 (1,474.256) (134,732)
Total net position 66,899,151 75,882,742 57.996.316 (8.983.591) 17.886.426
Total liabilities and
net position $ 72,547,851 $ 90574377 $67.975790 $(18.026.526) § 22 598,587
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Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
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Current assels

The decrease in current assets in the current fiscal year is largely due to accounts receivable due from the College.
At September 30, 2022 and 2021, accounts receivable due from the college totaled $5,950,643 and $11,627,891,
respectively. Amounts due from the college are associated with uneamed revenue from prepaid subscribers and
advance ticket sales for the 2023 Artist Series season.

The increase in current assets in the prior fiscal year is largely due to accounts receivable due from the College of
$11,627,991 associated with unearned revenue from prepaid subscribers and advance ticket sales for the 2022
Artist Series season.

Noncurrent assels

The 15% decrease in investments from $72.2 million to $61.3 million is due largely to a decrease in the fair value
of certain endowed assets during the year ended September 30, 2022, as was the 27% increase in investments
from $57 million to $72.2 million was due largely to an increase in the fair value of certain endowed assets during
the year ended September 30, 2021. A more detailed breakdown of the Foundation’s investments may be found in
Notes 3, 4, 5, and 6 which are an integral part of these financial statements.

Liabilities

Total liabilities from the 2021 period to 2022 period decreased by 62%, from $14.7 million to $5 million and can be
ascribed to an decrease in unearned pledge revenue. Total liabilities from the 2020 period to 2021 period increased
by 47%, from $9.9 million to $14.7 million and can be largely ascribed to an increase in unearned ticket revenues
associated with Artist Series’ activities.

Net position

Net position at September 30, 2022 totaled $66.9 million, a decrease of $8.9 million, or 12% from total net position
of $75.9 million as of September 30, 2020.

Net position at September 30, 2021 totaled $75.9 million, an increase of $17.9 million, or 31% from total net position
of $58 million as of September 30, 2020. Net position consists of two categories as follows:

1. Restricted assets consist of the following:

o Restricted by donors - expendable represents amounts which are available for spending in
accordance with the donor’s specified criteria; and

o Quasi endowments - expendable represents assets restricted by the Foundation as matching funds
for the Dr. Philip Benjamin Matching Grant Program and for the Foundation’s operational needs;
and

Permanent endowments - nonexpendable represents the Foundation’s restricted nonexpendable
endowment funds which are required to be held in perpetuity.

O

2. Unrestricted assets represent amounts available to the Foundation for operational purposes in support
of its mission.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The purpose of the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Pasition is to provide the details of the
operating and non-operating activities for the fiscal year. This includes the revenues displayed by major source,
expenses, and gains and losses received or incurred by the Foundation.
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The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position includes the following categories:

e Operating Revenues are revenues received from donor cash and noncash contributions, in- kind
support from the College, grants and other program revenues.

» Operating Expenses represent expenses incurred for goods and services provided in return for the
operating revenues to carry out the mission of the Foundation. Operating expenses include
scholarships to College students, salaries and benefits, institutional and program support to the
College, education programs, and management and general expenses supporting the Foundation
operations, exclusive of Artist Series activities.

o Net Operating Income/(Loss) represents the amount of operating revenues in excess of the year’s
operating expenses and does not include non-operating revenue.

« Artist Series activities represents revenues and expenses related to the Foundation’s Artist Series
events, shows and other activities.

« Non-operating Revenues represents amounts received from sources for which no services are provided
by the Foundation, e.g., investment income from endowed and other investments.

o Additions to Endowments represent contributions received for permanent endowments.
The change in net position is the result of the fiscal year's excess of or lack of excess of revenues over expenses.

In summary, the Foundation is structured as follows:

Fund development
Solicitation of donors for endowed and non-endowed contributions for scholarships, programs, and other

needs of the College.

Foundation support
Financial accounting, investment administration and operations support for the Foundation. The allocation

of funds allocations is also determined therein.

Artist Series
Production of Broadway shows and performing arts programs from which the Foundation receives the net

operating income at the end of the Series season.

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Amounts received from sources for which no services are provided by the Foundation, e.g., investment
income from endowed and other investments.

Additions to endowments
Contributions received for permanent endowments.
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Condensed Statements of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

September September September FY 22-21 FY 21-20
30, 2022 30, 2021 30, 2020 Change Change
Fund development:
Revenues $ 2,418,955 $ 2114897 § 653,404 § 304,058 $ 1,461,493
Pragram services (3,167,528) (1,869,423) (1,758,747) 1,298,108 110,676
Foundation support (1,067,338) (1,094 .412) (844,165) (27.074) 250,247
Operating (loss) (1.815,911) (848,938) (1.949,508) (966.973) 1,100,570
Artist Series:
Revenues from
shows 18,804,090 4.778,072 8,252,827 14,026,018 (3,474,755)
Expenses of shows {15,641,024) (2.212,144) (7.734,982) 13,428,880 (5,522.838)
Net activities 3,163,066 2,565,928 517,845 597,138 2.048,083
Net Investment Income
(loss) (10,461.878) 16,024,926 1,312,643 (26,486.804) 13.280.620
Changes in net position
hefore contributions
to permanent
endowments (9,114.723) 17.741.946 1.312.643 (26.856.669) 16.429.303
Contribution to
permanent
endowments 131,132 144,480 99.107 (13.348) 45,373
Total net position § 66,899.151 § 75,882,742 $ 57.996.316 $ (8,.983.6501) §$ 17.886.426

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is presented as part of the basic financial
statements. For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation’s increase (decrease) in net
position before contributions to endowments were $(9.1) million and $17.7 million, respectively, primarily due to the
increase in market values for investments.

Fund development

For the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation received major gifts from donors such as Bank
of America Foundation, Florida Blue Foundation, Fidelity Foundation, and PMK Foundation.

Artist Series
The Artist Series had $3,609,697 in advanced ticket sales for the 2023 season, a decrease of $8,599,892 from the
previous year end 2022 season.

The Artist Series had $12,209,589 in advanced ticket sales for the 2022 season, an increase of $4,209,650 from
the previous year end 2021 season.
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The Artist Series is a self-sustaining auxiliary service and, as such, receives no in-kind support from the College for
any expenses, including the salaries and benefits of its staff. The net income of $3,163,063 for the year ended
September 30, 2022, resulted in an amount due from the College which is remitted to the Foundation from the
College’s resources.

The Artist Series is a self-sustaining auxiliary service and, as such, receives no in-kind suppaort from the College for
any expenses, including the salaries and benefits of its staff. The net income of $429,485 for the year ended
September 30, 2021, resulted in an amount due from the College which is remitted to the Foundation from the
College’s resources.

Non-operating revenues and expenses

Year ended September 30, 2022

Non-operating revenues/expenses totaled a $10.4 million net loss, which includes interest and dividend, net of
investment fees loss of $102,619. Investment losses of $10.3 million are attributed primarily to market value
depreciation in the Foundation’s investment portfolio.

Year ended September 30, 2021

Non-operating revenues/expenses totaled a $16 million net gain, which includes interest and dividend, net of
investment fees foss of $117,901. Investment gains of $16.1 million are attributed primarily to market value
appreciation in the Foundation’s investment portfolio.

Additions to endowments

Year ended September 30, 2022

Permanent endowments. The Foundation received $131,132 in donor contributions to its permanent endowments.
There were no state matching funds received in fiscal 2022.

Year ended September 30, 2021

Permanent endowments. The Foundation received $144,480 in donor contributions to its permanent endowments.
There were no state matching funds received in fiscal 2021.

Statements of Cash Flows

The Statements of Cash Flows provides certain information about the Foundation’s financial resulis by reporting
the major sources and uses of cash and cash equivalents and indicates the cash provided by and used for operating,
capital and related financing activities, and investing activities.

Operating Activities include funds received from private donors, projects, grants and other sources, and Artist Series
activities and payments made to employees, suppliers for goods and services, and the College for programs,
institutional and facilities support for Foundation operations.

Noncapital Financing Activities include funds received from donors for contributions to permanent endowments.

Investing Activities represent funds used to purchase investments and funds received from proceeds of investment
sales, interest and dividends, and distributions from private equity funds.

Capital assets

The Foundation had no capital assets at September 30, 2022 or 2021.
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Economic outlook

The financial position of the Foundation is directly affected by certain economic conditions of Jacksonville's local
economy. Through private and corporate contributions, as well as net operating revenues from Artist Series
activities, the Foundation is expected to be able to directly support Florida State College at Jacksonville’s efforis to
continue providing scholarship support to students, the development of new programs to meet the ever-changing
needs of employers and provide a leadership role in educational and community services for Duval and Nassau
counties in northeast Florida.

Requests for information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Foundation’s finances for all those with an
interest therein. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
information may be addressed to:

Cleve E. Warren, Executive Director

Florida State Coliege at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
501 West State Street, Suite 104

Jacksonville, FL 32202

10
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Pledges receivable, current
Accounts receivable
Due from Florida State College at Jacksonville
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Pledges receivable long-term, net
Investments, fair value

Artwork
Restricted cash, agency endowment

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities:
Due to Florida State College at Jacksonville
Unearned revenues
Unearned revenues - Artist Series

Total current liabilities

Funds held as agency endowment
Total liabilities

Net position:
Restricted:
Restricted by donors - expendable
Permanent endowments - nonexpendable
Unrestricted:
Board appropriated
Unappropriated

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes.

2022 2021
4,701,035 4,868,494
432,004 1,163,927
- 150,652
5,950,643 11,627,991
28,015 219,631
11,111,697 18,030,695
60,395 150,000
61,258,809 72,276,193
23,675 23.675
93,275 93,814
72,547,851 90,574,377
1,430,223 1,054,307
515,505 1,333,925
3,609,697 12,209,589
5,655,425 14,597,821
93,275 93,814
5,648,700 14,691,635
6,040,196 5,068,856
27,292,721 33,464,631
33,566,234 35,874,999
- 1,474,256
66,899,151 75,882,742
72,547,851 90,574,377

11



202300728

Fiorida State College at Jacksonviile Foundation, inc.
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Years Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Program and fund development activities operating revenues:
Operating revenues:
Contributions $ 2,413,975 $ 2.068,456
In-kind support from Florida State College at Jacksonville - 32,317
Noncash contributions 4,980 11,124
Other revenues - 3,000
Total operating revenue from program and fund
development activities 2,418,955 2,114,897
Operating expenses:
Program services:
Scholarships 1,128,632 791,323
fnstitutional and program support 2,038,896 1,078,100
Total program services 3,167,528 1,869,423
Supporting services:
Salaries and benefits 447,823 513,000
Management and general 619,515 581,412
Total expenses 4,234,866 2,963,835
Operating loss from program and fund development
activities (1,815,911) (848,938)
Artist Series:
Revenues from performing arts events and shows 16,414,372 222,615
Qther revenues from Artist Series 216,977 173,866
Contributions 91,312 328.266
Grants ' 78,882 48,230
Shuttered Venue Operators Grant 2,002,547 4,005,095
Expenses of performing arts events {14,634,195) (1,254,335)
Salaries and benefits (1,006,829) (957,779)
Total Artist Series activities, net 3,163,066 2.565,958
Operating income 1,347,155 1,717,020
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest and dividends, net of investment fees (102,619) (117,901)
Net appreciation (depreciation) in investment {10,359,259) 16,142,827
Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net (£0,461,878) 16,024,926
Change in net position before contributions to endowments (9,114,723) 17,741,946
Contributions to permanent endowments 131,132 144,480
Change in net position (8,983,591) 17,886,426
Net position, beginning 75,882,742 57,996,316
Net position, ending $ 66,899,151 $ 75,882,742

See accompanying notes. 12
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Received from private donors
Received from projects, grants, and other sources
Received from performing arts productions
Payment received (from) in funds held
as agency endowment, net
Payments to College for scholarships
Payments to employees and suppliers for goods and services
Payments to College for programs and faciliies support

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments
Distributions from private equity investments
Interest and dividends received, net of investment fees

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions to permanent endowment fund

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents,
including restricted

Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, including restricted, ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash flow from
operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustment to reconcile operation loss to net cash flow from
operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in pledges receivable
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in amount due from Coltege
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase in amount due to College
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues
Increase (decrease) in funds held as agency endowment

See accompanying notes.

2022 2021
3,307,273 $ 1,774,281
2,081,429 4,087,924

13,252,195 1,525,710

(539) 2,123

(1,128,632) (180,917)

(16,327,466) (3,416,799)
(2,038,396) (1,078,100)
(854,636) 2,714,222
(849,154) (1,106,242)
1,607,279 1,859,656
(102,619) (117.901)
555,506 635,513
131,132 144,480
131,132 144,480
(167,998) 3,494,215
4,962,308 1,468,093
4,794,310 $ 4,962,308
1,347,155 $ 1,717,020
821,528 (43,696)
150,652 (150,652)
5,677,348 (3,399,025)
191,616 (121,586)
375,916 436,694
(9,418,312) 4,273,344
(539) 2,123
(854,636) _S 2,714,222

13
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Nature of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) is a not-for-profit corporation organized
as a direct-support organization, as defined in Section 1004.70 of the Florida Statutes, and a component unit of the
Fiorida State College at Jacksonville (the “College”). The Foundation provides financial support for the benefit of
the students and programs of the College.

Revenue and support are received primarily from individuals and businesses, most of whom are located in northeast
Florida. The Foundation also derives financial resources from the FSCJ Artist Series (the “Artist Series”) program
which operates as a fundraising component of the Foundation and College. The Artist Series is a presenter of
performing arts events and shows in northeast Florida and supports the College’s performing arts efforts including
the Scholarship Endowment Fund. The Fund supports performing arts students, as well as other students, attending
Florida State College at Jacksonville.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred. The Foundation follows pronouncements issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (‘GASB”). GASB establishes standards for external financial reporting which includes
a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of
cash flows using the direct method. These pronouncements also include a requirement that management provide
a discussion and analysis of the basic financial statement and the classification of net position into three
components — net investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as
follows:

e Netinvestmentin capital assets

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances of any debt that is
attributable to those assets (currently not applicable to the Foundation).

e Restricted

Consists of assets that have extemally imposed constraints placed upon their use, either by donors or
through laws, regulations, or restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation, reduced by any liabilities to be paid from these assets as follows:

o Expendable - net position that is subject to donor, grantor or other outside party restrictions as to
use for the benefit of various programs at the College or Foundation, including the expendable
portion of endowment funds;

Nonexpendable - net position representing the nonexpendable portion of endowment funds that
are subject to donar, grantor or other outside party restrictions as to use for the benefit of various
programs at the College or Foundation.

O
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e Unrestricted

Net position that does not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets” and
are available without restriction for carrying out the Foundation’s objectives. Unrestricted net position
may also be appropriated for specific purposes by action of the Foundation’s Board of Directors.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Foundation considers all cash on hand, cash on deposit, and
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. At
September 30, 2022 and 2021, unrestricted cash and cash equivalents included amounts on deposit with a
commercial bank totaling $4,134,752 and $3,979,259 respectively, which are available for immediate withdrawal.
Restricted cash and cash equivalents totaled $659,558 and $983,049 at September 30, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, consisting of bank demand deposit accounts.

Custodial credit risk — deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the
Foundation may not be able to recover its deposits. The Foundation periodically maintains public deposits in excess
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Alf such public deposits as defined by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes
are placed in Qualified Public Depositories. The Foundation had $4,050,617 and $3,983,043 in excess of federally
insured limits at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. Management does not believe there is any significant
credit risk relative to these deposits.

Investments

Investments are stated principally at fair value based on quoted market values. Private equity fund and other
alternative investments are based on external valuation sources. Net realized and unrealized gains and losses are
recognized in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. Investments
classified as noncurrent primarily represent the corpus of donor restricted contributions and amounts subject to
other restrictions as well as investments not expected to be used during the Foundation’s next fiscal year. The
Foundation's intent is to hold its investments for the long term. However, the short-term operating needs of the
Foundation may, at times, require the sale of a portion of these assets, subject to the approval of its Finance
Committee from recommendation of the investment committee.

Unearned revenues — Artist Series

Uneared revenues primarily represent tickets sold in advance for Artist Series events and shows occurring after
the statement of net position reporting date.

Contributions and pledges

The Foundation recognizes unrestricted contributions, including unconditional promises to give, as assets and
revenues in the period received at fair values. Contributions are considered unrestricted unless their use is
specifically restricted by the donor. Gifts of cash and other assets are reported as restricted support if their use is
restricted by any outside party.

The Foundation receives pledges of financial support from corporations and individuals. Revenue is recognized
when a pledge representing an unconditional promise to give is received and all eligibility requirements, including
time requirements, have been met. In the absence of such a promise, revenue is recognized when the gift is
received. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions”, endowment pledges or other pledges restricted for use in future periods do not meet eligibility
requirements and are not recorded until the related gift is received.
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Donor-restricted endowments

Investment income, including unrealized appreciation and depreciation, is allocated to the restricted expendable
account on a pro rata basis based on a 36-month average nonexpendable endowment balance. In accordance with
state law, these funds are then available for expenditure, at 4% annually, when the specific donor criteria are met.

In the absence of donor stipulations or law to the contrary, losses on the investments of a donor-restricted
endowment fund reduce restricted expendable net position to the extent that donor-imposed temporary restrictions
on net appreciation of the fund have not been met before a loss occurs. Any remaining loss reduces unrestricted
net position.

If losses reduce the assets of a donor-restricted endowment fund below the level required by the donor stipulations
or law, gains that restore the fair value of the assets of the endowment fund to the required levei are classified as
increases in unrestricted net position.

After the fair value of the assets of the endowment fund equals the required level, gains that are restricted by the
donor are classified as increases in restricted expendable net position or restricted nonexpendable net position,
depending on the donor’s restrictions.

Operating income

Operating revenues and expenses are those items resulting from providing services and producing and delivering
goods and services. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses. Interest and dividends, net gains and losses on investments, and contributions received for
endowments or from state matching funds are considered non-operating. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, the Foundation’s policy is to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted
resources as needed.

In-kind conftributions

The Coliege provides the Foundation with certain administrative and fiscal services, support personnel and staff,
and office space at no cost. In addition, the College may incur expenses for the Artist Series performing arts events
in excess of amounts reimbursed by the Foundation. Third parties, at times, may also contribute certain nonh-cash
items for the benefit of the College. Such in-kind contributions are recorded at their estimated fair values both as
revenues and expenses.

Real estate and artwork

Real estate and artwork are stated at cost on the date of purchase, or in the case of donated gifts, at their estimated
fair value on the date of contribution. Changes in estimated fair value are recognized in the statement of changes
in net position. Upon disposition, any related gain or loss is included in the change in net position.

Advertising and promotion

Advertising and promotion costs are primarily related to Artist Series shows and events. These costs are expensed
as incurred. Advertising and promotion expense totaled $71,991 and $26,631 for the years ended September 30,
2022 and 2021.

Income taxes

The Foundation is a not-for-profit organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
is exempt from federal and state income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code and Chapter 220.13 of the Florida Statutes, respectively. As such, only unrelated business income is subject
to income tax.
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Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect (1) the reported amounts of assets and liabilities;
(2) disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statement; and (3) the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Adoption of new accounting standards

The Foundation adopted new accounting guidance Govemmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87,
Leases, which is a change in accounting principle that addresses accounting and financial reporting of leases. This
statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for leases and requires the Foundation to recognize certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows
of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this statement, a
lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use the leased asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about the Foundation's leasing activities. The Foundation adopted this standard as of
October 1, 2021. The adoption of this standard does not impact the comparability of amounts reported in prior
periods.

Subsequent events

The Foundation has evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the financial statements through
May 18, 2023, which is the date the financiat statements were available to be issued.

2. Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable are presented in the accompanying statements of financial position as follows:

2022 2021
Receivable in less than one year $ 432,004 3 1,187,033
Receivable in one to five years 83,501 150.000
515,505 1,337,033
Discount to present value (23,106) (23.106)
Pledges receivable, net $ 492,399 $ 1.313.927

Pledges receivable are recorded at net realizable value in accordance with GASB 33. Pledges receivable for
amounts due in greater than one year from the reporting date have been discounted at 4.48% and 1.73% at
September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. No allowance for uncollectible pledges was considered necessary at
September 30, 2022 and 2021.

Five donors represented all of total pledges receivable at September 30, 2022. Eight donors represented ali of total
pledges receivable at September 30, 2021.
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3. Investments

The Foundation's investments are recorded at fair value and consist of corporate bonds, U.S. government bonds
and agency securities, equity mutual funds, fixed income mutual funds, money market funds, and private equity
funds. Real estate and artwork available for sale are recorded at estimated fair values.

The estimated fair values of investments are based on valuations provided by external investment managers and
consist of the following:

2022 2021

External pooled investment funds:
Domestic equities $ 28,136,866 $ 37,437,985
International equities 5,156,859 6,914,395
Real estate securities 2,999,929 3,621,630
Fixed income 12,907,730 11,532,274
Commodities 894,617 810,083
Money market 97,169 96,477
Private equity funds 11,065,639 11,863,349
Artwork 23,675 23,675
$ 61,282,484 $ 72299868

The Foundation had subscribed to a total capital commitment in private equity funds of $11,150,000. Additional
subscriptions increased total capital commitments to $14,150,000 at September 30, 2022 and 2021. Cumulative
capital calls totaled $11,460,126 through September 30, 2022 ($10,218,040 at September 30, 2021), leaving future
capital commitments of $2,689,874. Capital calls are due from time to time without notice in varying amounts. The
Foundation generally expects to be able to meet its capital commitment obligations.

The Foundation's net investment income (loss) is summarized as follows:

2022 2021
Net realized and unrealized gains (losses) $ (10,359,259) $ 16,142,827
Iinterest and dividend income 5,528 937
Investment management fees (108,147} (118.838)
Net investment income (loss) $ (10461.878) $  16.024,926
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4. Deposit and Investment Risk

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, reguires the following disclosures of credit and
interest rate risk related to the Foundation’s investment holdings that are invested in fixed-income funds as of
September 30, 2022 and 2021:

2022
Weighted Average
Fair Average Effective Credit
Value Life Duration Quality*
Commonfund Intermediate Term Fund ~ $ 5,091,471 2.6 years 2.0 years AA
Commonfund Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 7,816,259 7.9 years 6.6 years A+
Total fixed income securities $ 12,907,730
2021
Weighted Average
Fair Average Effective Credit
Value Life Duration Quality*
Commonfund Intermediate Term Fund  $ 2,326,060 2.5 years 1.7 years AA
Commonfund Multi-Strategy Bond Fund 9.206.214 7.3 years 6.4 years A+
Total fixed income securities $ 11.5632,274

Interest rate risk

The Foundation’s investment policy does not specifically limit debt obligation maturities. However, as a means of
managing the Foundation’s exposure to fair value losses arising from changes in interest rates, the policy provides
for diversifying fixed-income investments among maturities according to interest rate prospects.

Credit risk

The Foundation’s investment policy provides that no more than 15% of the corporate debt securities in the fixed-
income portfolio may be rated below investment-grade.

Custodial credit risk

The Foundation's investment policy does not address custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk

The Foundation’s investment policy provides that the maximum amount invested in the securities of a single issuer
may not exceed 5% of total investments. Securities issued by the United States government and its agencies are
nhot subject to this fimitation.
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5. Fair Value of Financial Assets

The Foundation implemented GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application ("GASB 72"),
effective July 1, 2015. GASB 72 establishes the accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value
measurements of investments. The Foundation's investments are reported at fair value, as defined under U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, which establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. Accordingly, fair value is defined as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date.

This standard also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The Foundation has characterized
its investments based on a three-level hierarchy to classify fair value measurements for disclosure purposes as

follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2: Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets. Valuations are
obtained from third-party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Pricing inputs are unobservable for the investment and include situations where there is little, if
any, market activity for the investment. The inputs into the determination of fair value require
management judgment and estimation. Such investment valuations are derived from other
valuation methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and

similar techniques.

Inputs broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including
assumptions about risk. The Foundation uses the market approach valuation technique to value its investments.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the uncbservable inputs. Prices for certain cash equivalents and investment
securities, such as U.S. government bonds and agency securities, fixed income and equity mutual funds, and
corporate bonds, are readily available in the active markets in which those securities are traded, and the resulting
fair values are categorized as Level 1.

There is little or no observable market data for the prices of, private equity funds and artwork that are held by the
Foundation. As a result, the fair values of these investments are categorized as Level 3.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Commingled external investment pools

The Foundation’s investments, including its endowments, in Commonfund are commingled external investment
pools of assets in which investors own units of the fund, not the actual underlying securities in the fund. Each fund
of the commingled investment pool allocates their assets among a select group of private investment funds. The
funds pursue multiple strategies to diversify risks and reduce volatility. The Foundation records the fair value of its
fund of the commingled funds’ investments based on their proportionate share of the underlying fair value of the
fund's net asset value as reported by the fund's investment manager. The Foundation's investments in the
Commonfund external investment funds are categorized as Level 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy, dependent upon
whether the inputs are observable or unobservabie.
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Private equity funds

Artwork and real estate

Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
International mutual funds

Real estate mutual funds
Commodity mutual funds
Emerging markets mutual funds
Money market

Private equity funds

Artwork

Total

Fixed income mutual funds
Equity mutual funds
International mutual funds

Real estate mutual funds
Commodity mutual funds
Emerging markets mutual funds
Money market

Private equity funds

Artwork

Total

Certain of the Foundation’s endowment-investments with Commonfund are also made in extemal private equity
funds. Private equity funds are typically structured as closed-end, commitment-based investment funds in which
the entity commits a specified amount of capital upon the fund’s inception. Such funds generally do not provide for
redemption options for investors nor permit subscriptions by new or existing investors. Accordingly, the interests in
such private equity funds do not have an active market and are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Artwork and real estate are valued at their fair value on the date of donation. Since there is no active market for
these investments, they are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following summarizes the Foundation’s investments carried by level within the valuation hierarchy:

2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
$ - $ 12,907,730 $ - $ 12,907,730
- 28,136,866 - 28,136,866
- 4,420,472 - 4,420,472
- 2,999,928 - 2,999,929
. 894,617 - 894,617
- 736,387 - 736,387
- 97,169 - 97,169
- - 11,065,639 11,065,639
- - 23,675 23,675
$ - $50193170 $11.089.314  $61,282,484
2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
$ - $11,5632,274 $ - $ 11,532,274
- 37,437,985 - 37,437,985
- 5,891,323 - 5,891,323
- 3,621,630 - 3,621,630
- 810,083 - 810,083
- 1,023,072 - 1,023,072
- 96,477 - 96,477
- - 11,863,349 11,863,349
- - 23,675 23,675
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The following is a reconciliation of investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3):

2022 2021
Fair value, beginning of period $ 11,887,024 $ 7,815,476
Net realized and unrealized gains (1,281,825) 5,115,525
Distributions {699,881) (1,859,656)
Purchases 1,183,996 815,679
Fair value, end of period $ 11,089,314 $ 11.887.024

6. Funds Held as Agency Endowment

The Foundation holds certain funds as an agency endowment for the Prosperity Scholarship Fund, which provides
scholarships to financially eligible students to attend college in northeast Florida. Scholarships to eligible students
may be used at Florida State College at Jacksonville, University of North Florida, Jacksonville University, or Edward
Waters College. Contributions to the Prosperity Scholarship Fund are permanently endowed and the investment
earnings on the endowed account are used to fund the scholarships.

The Foundation recognizes an asset and liability which is measured at the fair value of the funds received from the
donor. Distributions of cash for scholarships to specified third-party recipients are reported as decreases in the
asset and related liability. Financial activity related to the fund is excluded from the Foundation's statements of

revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

At September 30, 2022 and 2021, the balance in the Prosperity Scholarship Endowment account totaled $93,275
and $93,814, respectively, which is presented as a liability in the Foundation's statements of financial position. The
following summarizes the fund’s activity:

2022 2021
Agency endowment fund balance, beginning of year $ 93,814 $ 91,691
Contributions 6,618 6,623
Distributions to recipient colleges (7,157) (4,500)
Agency endowment fund balance, end of year $ 93,275 $ 93,814

7. Shuttered Venue Operators Grant

During the years ending September 30, 2022 and 2021, the Foundation received grants of $2,002,547 and
$4,005,095, respectively, under the Shuttered Venue Operators Grant program. This program was established by
the Economic Aid to Hard-Hit Small Businesses, Nonprofits, and Venues Act, and amended by the American
Rescue Plan Act. The grant provides emergency assistance to eligible venues affected by COVID-18. $1,591,108
and $1,868,235 was expended under this grant during the fiscal years ending September 30, 2022 and 2021,

respectively.
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8. State of Florida Matching of Private Contributions

The Foundation receives certain private contributions that were eligible to be matched, either all or in part, by the
state of Florida College System. These matching funds are authorized by the Dr. Philip Benjamin Matching Grant
Program for Community Colleges (Florida Statute 1011.85). For the year ended September 30, 2022, the
Foundation submitted a certified appropriations request in the amount of $1,611,695. The cumulative private
contributions received during the period from February 2, 2007 to February 1, 2022 are as follows:

Eligible State
Contributions Match
Received Reguested
Matching program for support scholarships (F.S. 1011.85(5)) $ 10,630,804 $ 10,113,146
Matching program for program support (F.S. 1011.85(6)) 7.896.217 4,947 685

$ 18,527,021 $ 15.060.831

The Foundation’s next appropriations request will be submitted upon request by the State.

Effective July 1, 2011, Senate Bill 2150 amended Florida Statute 1011.85 fo temporarily suspend staie matching
funds for eligible donations received on or after June 30, 2011. As a result, the State of Florida Legislature did not
appropriate funds for matching contributions for either of the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021. Existing
eligible donations remain eligible for future matching funds.

In addition to the above matching contributions, the state of Florida also appropriates certain nonrecurring general
funds for schotarships to “first generation-in-college” students under the First Generation Matching Grant Program
(“FGMG?”). As of December 1, 2021 (for the year ended September 30, 2021), the Foundation had received $85,273
of private contributions that were eligible for the FGMG match and had received 100% matching funds from the

State of Florida by September 30, 2021.

9. Board Appropriated Unrestricted Net Position

Board appropriated unrestricted net position are appropriated as follows:

2022 2021
Quasi-endowments $ 15,039,213 $ 19,445,244
Philip Benjamin Matching Grant Program 18,527,021 16.429.755

$ 33566234 S 35874999
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10. Restricted Net Position

Expendable restricted net position is restricted for scholarships or other similar purposes and totaled $6,040,196
and $5,068,856 at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Nonexpendable restricted net position (endowments) is donor-directed contributions restricted in perpetuity for
scholarships, program instruction, and other similar purposes. Nonexpendable restricted net position tataled
$27,292,721 and $33,464,631 at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Board of Trustees of the Foundation has interpreted the Florida Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional
Funds Act (“FUPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment fund, absent donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the
Foundation classifies as nonexpendable restricted net position: (a) the original value of the gift donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c)
accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to protect the
principal of the fund, provide consistent long-term income returns and protect the Foundation against long-term
inflation trends. To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total retum strategy in
which investment retums are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield
(interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis an
equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

The Foundation limits spending on endowments to a maximum of 4% on endowed programs & scholarships
spending and 1% for an administrative fee for a total of 5% annually of the most recent prior year-end endowment
fund balances provided net earnings are available.

11. Related-Party Transactions

The College incurs certain other expenses on behalf of the Foundation. Other in-kind expenses provided by the
College were $32,317 for the year ended September 30, 2021. There were no in-kind expenses provided by the
College for the year ended September 30, 2022.

In connection with an arrangement between the College and Foundation, the College also employs certain
employees whose services are related to the Artist Series performing arts activities on behalf of the Foundation.
Other costs and expenses related to the Artist Series may also be incurred by the College. Artist Series personnel
costs totaled $1,006,829 and $957,779 for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. None of
these expenses were provided in-kind by the College. As of September 30, 2022 and 2021, amounts due to the
College totaled $1,430,223 and $1,054,307, respectively.

At September 30, 2022, amounts due from the College totaled $5,950,643 ($11,627,991 as of September 30, 2021),
primarily related to Artist Series ticket sales for shows and events that occurred during the reporting period and
advance ticket sales collected by the College for shows to be performed after the statement of net position date.
At the end of the College’s fiscal June 30 reporting period, an accounting of the Artist Series revenue and expense
activities is prepared by the College, and any residual funds, net of Artist Series event expenses paid by the Caollege,
are remitted to the Foundation.
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12. Concentrations of Market, Credit and Currency Risks

The Foundation’s investments are subject to various risk factors including market, credit, and currency risk.
Investments are made in the United States and internationally and thus have concentrations in such regions. The
fund’s investments are also subject to the risk associated with investing in private equity securities. The investments
in private equity securities are generally illiquid, and there can be no assurance that the fund will be able to realize
the value of such investments in a timely manner. The Foundation had approximately 18% and 16% of its total
portfolio invested in private equity funds at September 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The funds are invested, for purposes of capital appreciation, in various underlying funds that vary by size, industry
and geographical concentration. Investment performance of an industry sector in which the funds have a
concentration of investments may have a significant impact on the performance of the fund.

The Foundation’s invested funds also participate in assets and securities of non-U.S. issuers. Investments of this
type may be subject to significant price fluctuations and above-average risk related to certain factors not typically
associated with investing in U.S. securities, including risks relating to currency exchange matters, differences
between the U.S. and foreign securities markets, and certain other economic and political risks with respect to such
securities.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Investment subscription agencies

The Foundation is parly to various subscription agreements with a private equity fund manager which provide for
capital contributions as requested by the funds. At September 30, 2022, future funding commitments totaled
$2,689,874 ($3,931,960 at September 30, 2021).

Grantor agencies

At times, the Foundation may receive grants from various govemment agencies. Activities related to these grants
are subject to audit by the regulatory funding authority. As a result, the Foundation may be contingently liable for
reimbursement of funds received which may exceed reimbursable expenditures. The Foundation’s management
believes that the liability, if any, for any reimbursable amounts would not be material to the financial statement.
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Pass-Through

Federal Entity
CFDA Identifying Federal

Federal Granting Agency Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Small Business Administration:

COVID-19 Shuttered Venue Operators Grant 59.075 N/A $ 1,591,108

Total U.S. Small Business Administration 1,591,108

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,591,108

See accompanying notes. 26
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Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule”) includes the federal award activity
of Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (a not-for-profit organization) (the “Foundation”) under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CRF) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (*Uniform Guidance”).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Foundation, it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Foundation. Therefore, some
amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from amounts presented in the financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The Foundation has elected not to use the 10% de minimus cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance.

4, Contingency

The grant revenue amounts received and expensed are subject to audit and adjustment. If any expenditures are
disallowed by the grantor as a result of such audit, any claim for reimbursement to the grantor would become a
liability of the Foundation. In the opinion of management, all grant expenditures are in compliance with the terms of
the grant agreements and applicable federal and state laws and regulations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors
Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
Jacksonville, FL

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in the Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Flerida
State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (@ nonprofit organization) (the “Foundation™) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated May 18, 2023.

Report an Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was limited for the purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses of, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions were not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. 28
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Purpose of the Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

FORVIS,LLP

Jacksonville, FL
May 18, 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for
Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal
Control Over Compliance

Board of Directors
Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
Jacksonville, FL

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (a not-for-profit organization) (the
"Foundation”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the
OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Foundation’s major
federal program for the year ended September 30, 2022. The Foundation’s major federal program is
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs.

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year
ended September 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (“GAAS”); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Governmental Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States ("Government
Auditing Standards”); and the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform
Guidance”). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance” section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Foundation and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each
maijor federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the
Foundation's federal programs.

FORVIS is a trademark of FORVIS, LLP, registration of which is pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. 30
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FORV/S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an
opinion on the Foundation's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from
fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on
compliance about the Foundation's compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as
a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
a test basis, evidence regarding the Foundation’s compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

« Obtain an understanding of the Foundation’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
"Auditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of Compliance” section above and was not designed to identify
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over
compliance may exist that were not identified.
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Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
controf over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

FORVIS,LLP

Jacksonviile, FL
May 18, 2023
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Florida State College at Jacksonville Foundation, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2022

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Part | - Summary of Auditor’s Results

1. The Independent Auditor's Report on whether the financial statements of Florida State College at
Jacksonville Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”) were prepared in accordance to GAAP, dated May 18,
2023 expressed an unmadified opinion.

2. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the financial statements are
reported in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards (report dated May 18, 2023) were noted.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the Foundation, which would be
required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were noted.

4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal award
programs are reported in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Program and
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance (report dated May 18, 2023).

5. The Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and On Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance, dated May 18, 2023, expressed an
unmodified opinion.

6. There were no audit findings relative to the major federal awards programs that are required to be
reported in accordance with CFR 200.516(a).

7. The Foundation’s major program was the Shuttered Venue Operators Grant (CFDA 58.075).
8. Athreshold of $750,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B Programs.

9. The Foundation does not qualify as a low-risk auditee as that term is defined in the Uniform Guidance.

Part Il - Findings — Financial Statement Audit

None reported.

Part lll - Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Awards

None reported.

Part IV — Status of Prior Year Findings

No prior year findings.
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FLORIDA STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE

Form 990 (2020) FOUNDATION, INC 23-7168438 Page 2
| Part Ill | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response of noteto any lineinthis Part Il ... CI

1  Briefly describe the organization's mission:
TO SECURE FINANCIAL RESOURCES FOR FLORIDA STATE COLLEGE AT
JACKSONVILLE TO PROVIDE STUDENTS IN NEED THE ACCESS TO AFFORDABLE AND

QUALITY EDUCATION

2  Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

PHOFFOMM 0 OF O0EZT oo eeorsombdesshsbos S04 8 O eSS4 [Ives [XINo
If “Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? ... ... .. |:|Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a  (Code: ) (Expenses § 2 r 747 ' 562. including grants of $ 1 ' 8 6 9 I 42 3. ) (Revenue $ )
THE FOUNDATION ASSISTS INDIVIDUALS WHO NEED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO
ATTEND FLORIDA STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE. TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF
EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES EACH YEAR, UP TO 1,000 SCHOLARSHIPS ARE
AWARDED TO STUDENTS TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL SUPPORT. FOR THE YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021, THE FOUNDATION AWARDED 791,323 IN SCHOLARSHIPS TO
493 STUDENTS.

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ 2 ' 2 1 2 '] 1 1 4 - including grants of $ ) (Flevenue $ 3 9 6 ' 4 8 l - )
THE FSCJ ARTIST SERIES ENRICHES LIVES THROUGHOUT NORTHEAST FLORIDA WITH
A DIVERSE SELECTION OF PERFORMING ARTS INCLUDING BROADWAY,
OFF-BROADWAY, OPERA, BALLET, CONTEMPORARY CONCERTS, EDUCATIONAL
THEATRE, WORLD MUSIC, DANCE, AND MANY OTHER PRODUCTIONS, BOTH NATIONAL
AND INTERNATIONAL. THE SUPPORT OF FSCJ ARTIST SERIES PATRONS THROUGH
ATTENDANCE AND CONTRIBUTION CONTRIBUTES IMPORTANTLY TO PROVIDING
ENDOWED SCHOLARSHIPS THROUGH THE FLORIDA STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE
FOUNDATION.

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ 3 8 3 ¥ 9 7 9 « including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 9 1 4 ' 5 4 4 « )
THE FOUNDATION PROVIDES VARIOUS OTHER FINANCIAL SUPPORT TO FLORIDA
STATE COLLEGE AT JACKSONVILLE AS FOLLOWS: FUNDING OF PREPAID COLLEGE
SCHOLARSHIPS AND STUDENT SERVICES FOR LOW-INCOME YOUTH AND STUDENTS IN
NASSAU COUNTY, FL, AND FINANCIAL SUPPORT TO MUSIC SCHOOL IN DUVAL
COUNTY, FL DEDICATED TO PROVIDING QUALITY MUSIC INSTRUCTION FOR
CHILDREN, ADULTS, AND FAMILIES REGARDLESS OF BACKGROUND OR EXPERIENCE.

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O)
{Expenses § including grants of § ) {(Reverue § )
4e Total program service expenses P> 5,343,655.

Form 990 (2020)
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Form 990 (2020) FOUNDATION, INC 23-7168438 Page 3
[Part IV ] Checklist of Required Schedules

10

1

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?

[F YES," COMDIBLE SCREAUIE A ...t e b s 4
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of CONTIBUIOIS? ... .ot
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public 0ffice? Jf "Yes, " complete SCAEAUIE C, Part 1 ..o i i b e
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) election in effect
during the tax year? Jf "Yes," complete SChEAUIE C, PAMt Il .........ciiii it et

Is the organization a section 501(c){4), 501(c)(), or 501 (c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197 Jf "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part /il
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part |
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? jf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il .._............ccocvviioiicinincninn
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? jf "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE D, PAIt Il ....oiiiiceaeuiiveanivmsssiaiansinssismsssanssasas innataseshessatn s oaan s 8521 1R SR P S b8 e e Ao 4SS E T T4 s 2SS S e e s m st s r s
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?

If "Yes," complete SCREAUIE D, PaIt IV _.......coiim it s b S
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments

or in quasi endowments? f "Yes," complete SCHEQUIE D, PRV ...o.oovouiroueeiiiuimsamssrssms et st
If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts Vi, VI, VINL 1X, or X

as applicable.
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?7 Jjf "Yes," complete Schedule D,

[T oY/ AU R R
Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total

assets reported in Part X, line 167 jf "Yes, " complete Schedule D, Part VIl ... i
Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 162 /£ "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl ..ot
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in

Part X, line 167 jf "Yes, " complete SChedule D, Part IX ... ... it sh s e s

e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ...........c.....

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

b
21

Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses

the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? if "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ...........
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? /f "Yes," complete

SCREAUIE D, Parts X1 @NG XIl ..o . ocuiiiiiieiiesies e iaiiaims i banas st e ssmssa s st sh S 4e 4 s b ah 2584 HE e B4 £ 40 440 £ LR RS T s
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?

If "Yes, " and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xil is optional —...............
Is the organization a school described in section 170)(1)(A})? If "Yes," complete Schedule E
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? .
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundralsmg, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000

or more? jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 1 @Nd IV ..ottt
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any

foreign organization? ff "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts 11 and IV ...
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to

or for foreign individuals? /f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il @Nd IV ...ttt
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,

column (A), lines 6 and 11€? Jf "Yes, " complete SChedule G, Part | ... oot e
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIlI, lines

1c and 8a? If "Yes," COMPIEte SCREAUIE G, PAIt I ... ooe e b s
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? /f "Yes,"
COMPIEte SCREAUIE G, PA Il ... L s .
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? /f "Yes," complete Schedule H ...,
If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or

domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 12 if "Yes," complete Schedule |, Paris I and Il

032003 12-23-20
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Yes | No
1 [ X
2 | X
3 X
4 X
5 X
6 X
7 X
g8 | X
g | X
10 | X
11a X
11b | X
11c X
11d| X
11e| X
111 | X
12a| X
12b | X
13 X
14a X
14b X
15 X
16 X
17 X
18 X
19 X
20a X
20b
21 [ X
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Form 990 (2020) FOUNDATION, INC 23-7168438 Page 4
Part IV [ Checklist of Required Schedules (ontinued)
Yes | No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 22 ff "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1and Il ..o it e 22 | X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VI, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? [f "Yes," complete
SEREOUIE T oo e GG S e e e re s s s oo TR 60 BTG e ne e B TR« oen e o0 0206518 23 | X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 /f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. IF "NO," GO 10 I8 258 ..o oottt em e oL e 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax- exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
ANY tax-eXEMPt DONGS? . i i s fmss oaiss 5555 N3 A IS R o e O oa S P o i et 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | .......oocvooecieciiciiicicicionee 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? f "Yes," complete
SOREAUIE L, PAIE T oo ootk ees e eseee s es s 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ... 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? [f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ......... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions, for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? ¢
"YES," COMPIELE SCHEAUIE L, PAIT IV ......oeeeeeeeeeeeeeetemtieica s oihsyem 25 em a2 s et b bR 2SS S 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a7? ff "Yes, " complete Schedule L, Part IV ... 28b X
¢ A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in lines 28a or 28b7 r
MY, " COMPIOIE SCRETUIE L, PAIT IV ... ohiisaiiisn st ssssis sy 3343334664393 4 55 5 o SN AR 28¢c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedule M ......c..ccccocovvcicinnn 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
CONtHbULIONS? I "Yes," COMPIEte SCREAUIE M ... oot bbb S s s 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? Jf “Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | .................. 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? jr "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE N, PAFE I —ooeeeoeooeoeoeee et oo oee e e 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? /f "Yes, " complete SCedule R, PArt | .......c....cccwwuowcecmmioscsmseeossiomssssseessssssssissseseoees 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I, ill, or IV, and
T YA YO U OOy OSSP IS S ST SO x| X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 51 2(p)(13)? 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512()(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, iNe 2 ........cccc.ocviiimiiiiinnciciiiceieae 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 ........... 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? [f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI ........ccoccicucs 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . .oooin o e 3g | X
I Part V|